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Vision
   SDMS will be a partner of choice with a strong leadership 
position and a strong brand name in the document management 
business maximizing wealth through differentiated and profitable 
business operations

Mission and Goals
•	 SDMS will provide End to End services in Document 

Management Solutions, both in the Physical Storage and 
Electronic Management space as well as provide workflow 
solutions.

•	 SDMS will grow both the Physical and Electronic Document 
Management business with a special focus on the Electronic 
Document Management Solution (DMS/EDMS) business that 
promises a high growth potential and return on capital.

“

“
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(` in crores)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2025

Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Income from Operations 98.31 98.68

Other Income 1.43 1.96

Total Income 99.74 100.64

Expenditure 

Financial Cost 7.20 7.97

Employees Benefit Exp. 16.62 15.32

Other Expenses 43.94 50.35

Depreciation 7.88 7.77

Right of use lease depreciation 10.22 10.45

Total Expenditure 85.86 91.86

Profit/(Loss) before tax & Prior Period Adjustment 13.88 8.78

Exceptional Items / Prior period (2.95) 3.09

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 10.93 11.87

Tax Expenses 3.04 3.75

Profit/(Loss) after tax 7.89 8.12

Other Comprehensive Income (0.13) (0.14)

Profit/(Loss) including other Comprehensive Income 7.76 7.98
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Directors’ Report
Dear Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Nineteenth Annual 
Report of the Company along with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Industry Overview

The document management landscape in India is 
undergoing a significant transformation, driven by the 
growing need for seamless access to information and the 
rapid adoption of digital technologies. As organizations 
prioritize efficiency and compliance, the demand for 
robust document management software (DMS) solutions 
continues to accelerate.

Today’s businesses are moving decisively away from 
traditional paper-based systems toward secure, scalable, 
and cloud-enabled platforms. Web-based technologies 
have been pivotal in reshaping how information is stored, 
accessed, and managed—enabling real-time retrieval 
from any location and supporting operational agility.

SDMS is at the forefront of this evolution, leveraging its 
strong institutional foundation and domain expertise to 
offer integrated, end-to-end DMS solutions. With a focus 
on digital transformation, SDMS empowers organizations 
to modernize their workflows, enhance productivity, and 
stay competitive in an increasingly information-driven 
economy.

Awards, Certifications and Memberships

SDMS remains dedicated to staying at the forefront of 
industry standards and certifications. SDMS is a CMMI-
DEV V2.0 Maturity Level 5 organization. This prestigious 
international recognition, awarded by Carnegie Mellon 
University’s Software Engineering Institute (SEI), assesses 
software development practices. Achieving CMMI Level 
5 demonstrates SDMS’ unwavering commitment to 
consistently delivering high-quality, reliable, cost-effective, 
and efficient software solutions and services to our clients.

Furthermore, SDMS holds seven ISO certifications in 
the end-to-end document management arena. These 
certifications include ISO 9001:2015, ISO 27001:2013, 
ISO 15836:2017, ISO/TR 15489:2016, ISO/IEC 20000-
1:2013, ISO 14721:2012, and ISO 10244:2010. Each 
certification signifies SDMS’ adherence to internationally 
recognized standards and practices in the field of document 
management. In addition to that SDMS had renewed it 
Microsoft Gold Partner Program which is now called as 
Microsoft AI Partner Program.

SDMS is enrolled as a member of PRISM, an international 
certification program specifically designed for companies 
offering storage and protection of hard-copy records. This 
membership reinforces our commitment to maintaining 
high standards in the storage services we provide.

Operations review & Financial Performance

SDMS delivers a comprehensive suite of services, including 
Physical Record Management, Digitization Services, 
Document Management Solutions, Hosted Services, 
Workflow Management Solutions, Enterprise Content 
Management (ECM), and Virtual Data Room (VDR) 
solutions.

For physical storage needs, SDMS offers four distinct 
options tailored to client requirements: Metal Carton 
Storage, Compactor/Bin Storage, advanced Robotic 
Metal Carton Storage and Corrugated Box Storage. With 
a network of over 25 state-of-the-art, secure storage 
facilities strategically located across India, SDMS ensures 
the safety, integrity, and accessibility of client records.

Beyond its core offerings, SDMS is actively executing large-
scale storage and digital transformation projects for clients 
across diverse sectors. These initiatives are expected to 
significantly contribute to the company’s revenue growth. 
Backed by its strong capabilities and market reputation, 
SDMS remains confident in its ability to onboard new 
clients across industry verticals and achieve its revenue 
targets for the upcoming fiscal year                                                                                                                

The financial results are summarized below:

    (Rs. in crores)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2025
Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Total Income 99.74 100.64

Total Expenditure 85.86 91.86

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 13.88 8.78

Exceptional Items (2.95) 3.09

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 10.93 11.87

Tax Expenses 3.04 3.75

Profit/(Loss) after tax 7.89 8.12

Other Comprehensive Income (0.13) (0.14)

Profit/(Loss)  including other Comprehensive Income 7.76 7.98
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The total income witnessed a 0.89% marginal decrease 
from Rs. 100.64 crs in FY 23-24 to Rs. 99.74 crs in FY 24-
25. However, the income from Physical Storage segment 
increased by 10% from Rs. 41.41 crs. in FY 23-24 to Rs. 
45.43 crs. in FY 24-25. The Digitisation segment increased 
by 18% (FY 23-24 – Rs. 12.50 crs FY 24-25 – Rs. 14.76 
crs). The income from software products/services segment 
decreased by 4% from Rs. 39.43 crs. in FY 23-24 to Rs. 
37.78 crs. in FY 24-25. The income from other projects 
segment decreased by 94% from Rs. 5.34 crs. in FY 23-24 
to Rs. 0.34 crs. in FY 24-25. The Company reported profit 
(PBT) of Rs. 10.93 crores in the FY 24-25, as compared to 
Rs. 11.87 crores in the FY 23-24.

During the Fiscal year 2024-25, the company successfully 
acquired 25 new clients. These clients availed services in 
various combinations, including 17 clients who choose 
physical storage and 8 clients who opted for both scanning 
and digitization services.

Future Outlook

To ensure sustained long-term growth, SDMS is proactively 
adapting to evolving market dynamics and diverse 
customer expectations. The adoption of robust digital 
marketing and eGovernance strategies are central to 
building stronger communication channels and enhancing 
engagement with both prospective and existing clients.

SDMS is also focused on optimizing its nationwide network 
of storage facilities to drive greater operational efficiency 
and scalability. In parallel, the company is witnessing 
strong growth potential in its allied services portfolio—well-
aligned with the rising demand for agile, cloud-enabled, 
and easily accessible document management and project 

management solutions.

Looking ahead, SDMS is well-positioned to expand its 
service portfolio and reinforce its market leadership. Backed 
by a commitment to quality, trusted industry credentials, 
and strategic partnerships, SDMS is poised to capitalize 
on emerging opportunities and achieve sustained success 
in the competitive landscape of document and content 
management services.

Dividend

To conserve the resources available for business expansion, 
the Directors of the Company do not recommend any 
dividend for the FY 2024-25.

Transfer to Reserves

The closing balance of the retained earnings of the 
Company for FY 2024-25, after all appropriation and 
adjustments was Rs. (1090.66) lakhs.

Human Wealth Development & Training 

Human Wealth Development & Training is a transformative 
approach that aligns individual growth with organizational 
objectives, fostering a culture of continuous improvement 
and innovation. By integrating personal goals with 
company strategies, it ensures that every member of the 
organization is working towards a common vision, thus 
creating a harmonious and productive work environment. 
The training initiatives were designed to address the 
specific needs of an organization, ranging from soft 
skills enhancement, cultural and behavioral practices, to 
technical competencies and leadership abilities.

The training sessions were meticulously crafted to reflect 
the organization’s values, and processes, ensuring that the 
learning experience is relevant and impactful. Throughout 
the year, various events and competitions were organized 
to enhance community spirit and promote inclusivity. These 
included celebrations for Dussehra, Diwali, Christmas 
among others.

The Company participated in various Government of India 
initiatives by observing Vigilance Awareness Week with the 

theme ‘Culture of Integrity for Nation’s Prosperity‘.                                                    

Material changes and commitment affecting the 
financial position

There are no material changes affecting the financial 
position of the Company subsequent to the close of the FY 
2024-25 till the date of this report.

Corporate Etiquette & Grooming Training



StockHolding Document Management Services Limited 7

Financial Highlights Board & Management Financial Statements

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, Associate Companies 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture 
company or associate company.

Dematerialization of Securities of the Company 

The Equity Shares & Fully Convertible Debentures (FCDs) 
of the Company have been admitted with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). MUFG Intime India 
Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India 
Private Limited) is the Registrar and Transfer Agent. The 
ISIN allocated by NSDL to the Company w.r.t. equity 
shares & FCDs is “INE01DQ01017” & “INE01DQ08020”, 
respectively. The Company’s equity shares & FCDs are 
completely in dematerialized form.

Green initiative

 As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company supports 
the green initiative undertaken by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Government of India, enabling electronic delivery 
of documents including the Annual Report & AGM notice 
to shareholders at their registered email addresses.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 
ability confirm: 

i)	 that in the preparation of the annual financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
and there are no material departures;

ii)	 that such accounting policies have been selected and 
applied consistently and judgments and estimates 
have been made that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit 
of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

iii)	 that proper and sufficient care has been taken for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

iv)	 that the annual financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis; 

v)	 that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws were in place and were 
adequate and operating effectively

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) 

Mr. Venkatraman Ganesh Iyer (till May 17, 2024):

Mr. Venkatraman Ganesh Iyer (DIN: 01204165) resigned 
as Independent Director with effect from close of business 
hours on May 17, 2024.

Mr. Jagdish Thakur (till August 30, 2024): 

Mr. Jagdish Thakur (DIN: 02941956) resigned as a 
Director with effect from close of business hours on August 
30, 2024.

Ms. Sreelakshmi Pandula (till May 31, 2024): 

Ms. Sreelakshmi Pandula (DIN: 09215125) tendered her 
resignation as MD & CEO with effect from close of business 
hours on May 31, 2024.

Mr. Sunder Kataria 

Subsequent to the resignation of Ms. Sreelakshmi Pandula 
(DIN: 09215125) as MD & CEO with effect from May 31, 
2024, Mr. Sunder Kataria (DIN: 10702625), the then Chief 
Technology Officer of the Company on deputation from 
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited was appointed 
as an Additional Director and was redesignated as MD & 
CEO with effect from July 18, 2024.

Vigilance Awareness Week – 2024
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Mr. Parag Gupta and Ms. Sumita Rai

Mr. Parag Gupta (DIN: 02130316) and Ms. Sumita Rai 
(DIN: 02692706) were appointed as Additional Directors 
of the Company with effect from November 15, 2023 
and July 16, 2024 respectively. They were regularized as 
Directors by the members of the Company at the Annual 
General Meeting held on September 18, 2024.

Mr. Atul Saxena

Upon the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Atul Saxena (DIN: 
02698585) was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-
Executive) and Chairperson of the Board with effect from 
September 21, 2024.

Ms. Dimple Hasija 

During the year under review, Ms. Teena Dedhia had 
resigned as Company Secretary of the Company with 
effect from July 19, 2024. Subsequently, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, Ms. Dimple Hasija was appointed as the 
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 
December 19, 2024. 

As on the date of approval of the Directors Report i.e. July 
23, 2025, the Company’s Board of Directors comprises 
six Board Members. As on March 31, 2025, the Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company include Mr. Sunder 
Kataria, Ms. Jyoti Katira and Ms. Dimple Hasija.

Numbers of meetings of the Board 

Regular meetings of the Board and its Committees are 
held to discuss and decide on various business policies, 
strategies etc. 

During the year, seven Board Meetings were convened and 
held. The intervening gaps between the meetings was well 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013. The details of meetings of the Board and various 
Committees of the Board are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report which forms part of this report.

Audit Committee 

The details of the composition and meetings of the Audit 
Committee of the Board are included in the Corporate 
Governance report which forms part of this report.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

The Company has a policy on Nomination and Remuneration 
as required under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013. Currently, the Board has an appropriate mix of 
Executive & Non-Executive Directors. The Policy is made 
available at https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/
Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf. 
The details of the composition of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board and meetings held 
during the FY 2024-25 are included in the Corporate 
Governance report which forms part of this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) policy of your Company and the initiatives undertaken 
on CSR during the year are set out in this report in the 
format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 at Annexure 1. The 
policy is also available on the website of your Company at 
https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/Corporate%20
Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf

Risk Management Policy

The Company has developed and implemented a risk 
management policy to identify, assess, measure, mitigate/ 
control, monitor and report risks across the organization 
as also to develop a risk culture that encourages all 
staff to identify risks and associated opportunities and 
to respond to them with effective actions. The details of 
the composition and meetings of the Risk Management 
Committee of the Board are included in the Corporate 
Governance report which forms part of this report.

Policy on Related Party Transactions (RPTs) and 
Dealing with RPTs

The Company has developed policy on Related Party 
Transactions (RPTs) and Dealing with RPTs in line with the 
policy of the Holding Company to facilitate transactions 
with related parties. The policy is available on the website 
of your Company at https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/
policies/SDMS%20Policy%20on%20RPT.pdf

Employee Promotion Policy

The Company has developed policy on promotion of 
employees in line with the policy of the Holding Company 
which in turn facilitates better integration across the overall 
corporate structure.  It was developed to foster a culture of 
growth, recognition and retention within the organization.

Auditors 

The Ultimate Holding Company i.e. IFCI Limited is a 
Government Company as per the provisions of Section 
2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. April 07, 2015. 
Being a subsidiary of a Government Company, your 
Company is also a Government Company w.e.f. April 07, 
2015. 

The Statutory Auditors of the Company are appointed by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). 
M/s abm & associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were 
the Statutory Auditors for the FY 2024-25. The Company 
has an elaborate internal audit system. Internal Audit is 
carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) 
Audit 

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG), 
have decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of 
the financial statements of your Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2025 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Copy of the same is placed next to 
the Statutory Auditors’ Report forming part of the financial 
statements.

https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/Nomination & Remuneration Policy.pdf
https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/Nomination & Remuneration Policy.pdf
https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.pdf
https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.pdf
https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/SDMS Policy on RPT.pdf
https://stockholdingdms.com/pdf/policies/SDMS Policy on RPT.pdf
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Secretarial Auditors and Standards 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Company 
had appointed M/s. D. A. Kamat, Practicing Company 
Secretaries (FCS no. 3843, Certificate of Practice no. 
4965) to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for FY 2024-25. The report of the Secretarial Auditor 
for FY 2024-25 is attached at Annexure 2. There are no 
qualifications, observations or adverse remarks in the 
said report. The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
has currently mandated compliance with the Secretarial 
Standards on Board Meetings and General Meetings. 
During the year under review, the Company has complied 
with the applicable Secretarial Standards.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

The Company has not given any loans, guarantees and 
investments within the purview of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during 
the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were 
in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially 
significant related party transactions by the Company with 
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other 
designated persons which might have had a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. As 
required under Companies Act, 2013, e-Form AOC-2 for 
related party transaction is appended as Annexure 3 to 
this Report which is a nil report.

Merger update (Consolidation of IFCI Group)

The Company received a letter from Holding Company 
on February 13, 2025 informing about the consolidation 
of IFCI Group. The Board of IFCI at its meeting held on 
November 22, 2024 has considered and accorded in-
principle approval of consolidation of IFCI Group, and 
to commence the process for the same. More details on 
consolidation can be viewed at https://www.nseindia.
com/get-quotes/equity?symbol=IFCI

Annual Return 

As per Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the 
Act, the Annual Return for FY 2024-25 is uploaded on the 
website of the Company and can be accessed at the link 
https://stockholdingdms.com/annual-returns.php.

Corporate Governance 

The Company is not a listed entity. Nevertheless, it 
endeavors to comply with Corporate Governance norms. 
A report thereof is placed herewith at Annexure 3.

Committee on Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has a Committee Against Sexual Harassment 
in place as required under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. In order to foster a healthy and 
safe workplace culture where people value one another 
and treat each other with respect, the Company regularly 

conducts sensitisation sessions for its employees, both 
physically and through online modules, which are related to 
sexual harassment, to maintain a workplace free of sexual 
harassment. The disclosures required to be made under 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 are given below:

Number of complaints of 
sexual harassment received 
in the FY 2024-2025

Nil

Number of complaints 
disposed off during the FY 
2024-2025

NA

Number of cases pending 
for more than ninety days

NA

Number of workshops 
or awareness programs 
against sexual harassment 
carried out

Two awareness programs 
was conducted to sensitize 
employees towards the 
Sexual Harassment of 
Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. One 
program was conducted 
physically and the other 
through video modules.

Nature of action taken by 
the employer

Nil

Compliance of Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions 
of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. It has ensured that 
all eligible female employees are extended the benefits 
mandated under the Act, including paid maternity leave, 
nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal during 
maternity leave. 

The Company remains committed to providing a safe, 
supportive and inclusive work environment and continues 
to implement policies that support the health and well-
being of women employees, especially during maternity 
and post-maternity periods.

Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of the Company were in receipt 
of remuneration in excess of the limits as laid down under 
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Deposits from Public

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public. 
Hence, no information is required to be appended to this 
report.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation 
of its own performance, the Directors individually as well 
as the evaluation of the working of Committees of the 
Board.

https://www.nseindia.com/get-quotes/equity?symbol=IFCI
https://www.nseindia.com/get-quotes/equity?symbol=IFCI
https://stockholdingdms.com/annual-returns.php
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The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 
evaluation process.

Internal Financial Controls 

The Company has laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls are adequate and operating effectively.

Significant and material orders passed by the 
Regulator or Court or Tribunal: Nil

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of energy & technology absorption 

The Company does not carry any manufacturing activities. 
However, it has taken steps towards conservation of energy 
and continues to use latest technologies for improving 
the productivity and quality of its services. The Company 
replaces old and obsolete equipments with energy efficient 
equipments on an ongoing basis. 

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

Foreign Exchange earnings – Nil (Previous year – Nil)

Foreign Exchange outgo – Rs. 47.16 Lakhs (Previous year 
– Rs. 37.73 Lakhs)

General 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review.

a)  	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b)  	 Issue of equity shares with differential right as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise. 

c)  	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of the Company under any scheme. 

d)  	 No significant or material orders were passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the 
going concern status and company’s operation in 
future. 

e)  	 Maintenance of cost records as specified by the 
Central Government under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

f)  	 No application was made or any proceedings are 
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016. 

g)  	 There is no such instance of difference between the 
amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time 
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan 
from Banks or Financial Institutions
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ANNEXURE 1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES OF STOCKHOLDING 
DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED FOR 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025
1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

	 Your Company strongly believes that Business & Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) go hand-in-hand.

	 The Board of your Company after taking into account the recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee of the Board has approved the CSR policy. 

	 The CSR activities of your Company are towards the under mentioned areas.

i.	 Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care, sanitation, etc.;

ii.	 Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills, etc.;

iii.	 Any other area under Schedule VII of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 All the CSR activities of your Company are predominantly being undertaken through SHCIL Foundation Trust, a public 
charitable trust formed by Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited (Holding Company) and registered under 
Section 12 (A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Trust carries out certain activities directly and also indirectly by way of 
donations to credible NGOs which are eligible to issue certificate under Section 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 Keeping in view Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereto, Board shall recommend and carry out 
any one or more of the following activities:

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sr. 
No.

Name of 
Director

Designation/ 
Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the 

year

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during 

the year

1. Sumita Rai Chairperson 1 1

2. Sunder Kataria Member 1 1

3. Debashis Gupta Member 1 1

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are 
disclosed on the website of the company: 

	 The CSR policy is displayed on the website 

https://www.stockholdingdms.com/userfiles/downloads/CSR-Policy-of-StockHolding-DMS.pdf

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with weblink(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance 
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable:  N/A

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off for the Financial Year, if any: N/A

Sl.
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in Rs)

Amount required to be setoff for the 
financial year, if any (in Rs)

1 Nil Nil Nil

2 Nil Nil Nil

3 Nil Nil Nil

6.	 (a) 	 Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):   Rs. 662.24 Lakhs 

(b) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):  Rs. 13.24 Lakhs is rounded off to Rs. 
13.25 Lakhs 

(c) 	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

(d) 	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:   Nil

(e) 	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (6b+6c-6d):   Rs. 13.25 Lakhs

https://www.stockholdingdms.com/userfiles/downloads/CSR-Policy-of-StockHolding-DMS.pdf
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7. 	 (a) 	 Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and other than ongoing project):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl.
No.

Status of 
the Project 
(Ongoing/
other than 
ongoing)

Name of 
the project

Item from the list 
of activities in 
schedule VII to 

the Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No).

Location of
the project

Amount 
spent for 

the project
(in Rs.)

Mode of 
implemen-

tation- 
Direct 

(Yes/No)

 Mode of implementation-
Through implementing 

agency
State District Name CSR

Registration 
number

1. Other than 
Ongoing 
Project

Humble 
Smile 
Foundat-
ion. 

Health-Eradicating 
hunger, poverty 
and malnutrition, 
promoting health 
care including 
preventive health 
care and sanitation 
including 
promotion of 
sanitation and 
making available 
safe drinking 
water.

Yes Maharashtra, 
Palghar

     
6,25,000/-

    No SHCIL 
Foundation 

Trust

CSR00004627

2. Other than 
Ongoing 
Project

The 
National 
Association     
of  
Disabled’s 
Enterprises 
(NADE)

Education 
Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education and 
employment 
enhancing 
vocational skills 
especially among 
children, women, 
elderly and the 
differently able 
and livelihood 
enhancement 
Projects.

Yes Maharashtra, 
Mumbai 
suburban

    
7,00,000/-

    No SHCIL 
Foundation 

Trust

CSR00004627

	 (b)  	Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:  Nil 

(c)  	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:  Nil

(d) 	 Total Amount spent for the financial year {(a)+(b)+(c)}: 13,25,000

(e)  	CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
financial year

Rs.

Amount Unspent Rs.

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per Section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to Section 135 (5)
Amount Date of Transfer Amount Date of Transfer

      13,25,000 Nil - Nil -

(f) 	 Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount Rs.

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) Nil

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year Nil

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

(iv)
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any

Nil

(v) Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii)– iv)] Nil
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8. 	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR Account 
under sub-

section (6) of 
section 135

Rs.

Balance 
amount in 
Unspent 

CSR Account 
under sub-

section (6) of 
section 135

Rs.

Amount 
spent 
in the 

financial 
year
Rs.

Amount 
transferred to a 

Fund as specified 
under Schedule 

VII as per second 
proviso to sub-
section (5) of 

section 135, if any

Amount 
remaining 
unspent in 
succeeding 
financial 

years 
Rs.

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount Date of 
Transfer

 1 2021-2022  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  N/A  Nil Nil

 2 2022-2023  Nil  Nil   Nil  Nil  N/A  Nil Nil

 3 2023-2024  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  N/A  Nil Nil

9. 	 Whether any Capital Assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amounts spent 
in the financial year:  No

10. 	Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5): NA  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place	: Mumbai Sunder Kataria Atul Saxena
Date	: July 23, 2025 MD & CEO Director  
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ANNEXURE 2

To,
The Members,
StockHolding Document Management Services Limited,
SHCIL House, 
Plot No. P-51, T.T.C., Industrial Area,
MIDC Mahape,
Navi Mumbai- 400710.

Subject : Secretarial Audit Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25

We present herewith the Secretarial Audit Report for StockHolding Document Management Services Limited, for the 
Financial Year 2024-25 in terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. Our report of event date is to be read along 
with the following:

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents for the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we have followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Signature: 
Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co

D. A. Kamat, Partner
FCS No. 3843
CP No. 4965

Place	: Mumbai UDIN: F003843G000754890 
Date	: 10/07/2025 P. R. No.: 1714/2022
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FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1ST APRIL 2024 TO 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES LIMITED,

Plot No. P-51, T.T.C., Industrial Area,
MIDC Mahape,
Navi Mumbai- 400710.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by StockHolding 
Document Management Services Limited (CIN: 
U74140MH2006GOI163728) (hereinafter called the 
“Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,  
papers,  minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of the 
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given 
to us and the presentations made by the Management, we  
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during 
the audit period covering Financial Year from 1st April, 
2024 to 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

I.	 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed, reports issued by various 
fellow professionals and other applicable records 
and registers and maintained by the Company for 
the Financial Year from 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 
2025 according to the provisions of:

1.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the 
rules made there under;

2.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

3.	 Insurance Act, 1938, and the rules made 
thereunder to the extent of reporting towards 

Insurance; (not applicable during the period 
under review) 

4.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made there under to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas 
Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings – as applicable in respect of the 
reporting towards their Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999; (not applicable 
during the period under review)

	 During the period under review, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above to the extent stated in this Report.

II.	 Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines 
prescribed are not applicable to the Company, as 
securities of the Company are not listed on the Stock 
Exchange, for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025 under report:

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulation, 2011;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation, 2018;

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 
2008;

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulation, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client;

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulation, 1998;

(i)	 The Securities and Exchange and Board of India 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation, 2015.

III.	 We have reviewed the information, documents, 
records, filings and other certificates or confirmations 
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received from fellow professionals for the period 
under review and the representations made by the 
Company and its officers on the systems, records 
and compliances under other laws applicable to the 
Company.

IV.	 We have examined the compliances of the applicable 
provisions of Secretarial Standards, I and II issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries, India and 
notified by the MCA u/s 118(10) as issued under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the year under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through with unanimous 
consent of all the Board of Directors and recorded as part 
of the minutes.

We further report that during the year under report and 

till the date of this report, the Company has undertaken 
the following event / action having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to 
above:

(a)	 The Company had appointed Shri. Sunder Kataria 
(DIN: 10702625) as Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer (“CEO) on account of Resignation 
of Smt. Pandula Sreelakshmi (DIN: 09215125) with 
effect from 18th July 2024 till July 17, 2027, subject to 
the approval of the members.

	 The consent of the members for the appointment of 
Shri. Sunder Kataria (DIN: 10702625) as Managing 
Director & CEO with effect from 18th July 2024 was 
accorded in the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company dated 18th September 2024.

(b)	 During the year, Ms. Teena Dedhia had ceased to 
be the Company Secretary with effect from 19th July, 
2024. Further, the Company appointed Ms. Dimple 
Hasija as the Company Secretary and Key Managerial 
Personnel with effect from 19th December, 2024.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
Compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and 
Guidelines. The Company has responded appropriately 
to notices/emails received from the statutory/regulatory 
authorities including by taking corrective measures 
wherever they found necessary.

Signature: 
Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co

D. A. Kamat, Partner
FCS No. 3843
CP No. 4965

Place	: Mumbai UDIN: F003843G000754890 
Date	: 10/07/2025 P. R. No.: 1714/2022
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ANNEXURE 3

e-Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014)

1.   	Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - None 

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship – Not Applicable

(b)	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions – Not Applicable 

(c)	 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions – Not Applicable 

(d)	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any  –  Not Applicable 

(e)	 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions – Not Applicable 

(f)	 Date (s) of approval by the Board – Not Applicable 

(g)	 Amount paid as advances, if any: – Not Applicable

(h)	 Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first   proviso to section 
188 – Not Applicable

2.    Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) 	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship – Not Applicable 

(b) 	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions – Not Applicable 

(c) 	 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions – Not Applicable 

(d) 	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any –  Not Applicable 

(e) 	 Date(s) of approval by the Board/ Audit Committee, if any – Not Applicable 

(f) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any – Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place	: Mumbai Sunder Kataria Atul Saxena
Date	: July 23, 2025 MD & CEO Director  



19th Annual Report 2024-202518

                                           ANNEXURE - 4

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(forming part of Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2025)

Your Company‘s philosophy on code of Governance 

The Company, though not listed, strives to adhere to Corporate Governance norms emphasizing accountability to all 
stakeholders and transparent operations to enhance shareholder value. The Company is fully committed to practicing 
best Corporate Governance and upholding the highest ethical standards in conducting business.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for setting strategic goals, defining policies, and overseeing their implementation. As of July 
23, 2025, the Board comprises six members, with day-to-day management handled by the Managing Director and CEO.

Details of the Board Meeting and Attendance

The Board of Directors meet at least once in every quarter. Seven meetings were held during the FY 2024-25. Details of 
Board Meetings held are as follows:

Sr. No Date of the Board Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors present

1 April 12, 2024 6 6
2 June 1, 2024 4 4
3 July 18, 2024 4 4
4 October 4, 2024 6 6
5 October 18, 2024 6 6
6 January 21, 2025 6 6
7 March 13, 2025 6 6

Attendance of Directors during FY 2024-25 at each of the above meetings is as follows:

Sr. 
No. Name of the Director

Attendance at the Board Meetings held on
12-April- 

24
1-June-

24
18-July-

24
4-Oct-24 18-Oct-

24
21-Jan-

25
13-Mar-

25

1 Mr. Jagdish Thakur √ √ √ Resigned w.e.f. August 30, 2024

2 Mr. Venkatraman Iyer √ Resigned w.e.f. May 17, 2024

3 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Garg √ √ √ √ √ √ √

4 Mr. Debashis Gupta √ √ √ √ √
√

√

5 Mr. Parag Gupta √ √ √ √ √ √ √

6 Ms. Pandula Sreelakshmi √ Resigned w.e.f. May 31, 2024

7 Mr. Atul Saxena - 		 - - *√ √ √ √

8 Ms. Sumita Rai - - - **√ √ √ √

9 Mr. Sunder Kataria - - - ***√ √ √ √

√ = attended 

* Appointed w.e.f. September 21, 2024.

** Appointed w.e.f. July 16, 2024.

*** Appointed w.e.f. July 18, 2024.

The details of Directorships held by the Directors in other companies are as follows: 

Name of the Director Name of institution Designation

Mr. Atul Saxena

Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited MD & CEO

StockHolding Services Limited Additional Director

StockHolding Securities IFSC Limited Additional Director

IFCI Financial Services Limited Additional Director

Shiga Energy Private Limited Nominee Director
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Name of the Director Name of institution Designation

Mr. Debashis Gupta IIDL Realtors Private Limited Director

Mr. Parag Gupta

Eurocoustic Products Limited Director

UJVN Limited Director

Uttarakhand Power Corporation Limited Director

Power Transmission Corporation Of Uttarakhand Limited Director

Aumbrahm Solutions Private Limited Director

Panimko Advisors LLP Designated Partner

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Garg
Techfab (India) Industries Limited Director

Lendthrive Finance Private Limited Director

Ms. Sumita Rai IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited Director

Mr. Sunder Kataria - -

Details of Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance

The Audit Committee met four times during the year. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee 
meetings are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category
Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting held on

12-April-24 18-July-24 18-Oct-24 21-Jan-25

1 Mr. Venkatraman Iyer
Non-Executive/ 
Independent

√ Resigned w.e.f. May 17, 2024

2 Mr. Jagdish Thakur Non-Executive √ √ Resigned w.e.f. August 30, 2024

3 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Garg Non-Executive √ √ √ √

4 Mr. Debashis Gupta Non-Executive - √ √ √

5 Mr. Parag Gupta Non-Executive - - √ √

√ = attended 

Details of Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings and Attendance

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met six times during the year. The details of attendance of the Directors 
at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category Attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meeting held on

12-April-
24

01-June-
24

18-July-
24

18-Oct-
24

21-Jan-
25

13-Mar-
25

1 Mr. Jagdish Thakur Non- Executive √ √ √ Resigned w.e.f. August 30, 2024

2 Mr. Venkatraman Iyer
Non- Executive/ 
Independent

√ Resigned w.e.f. May 17, 2024

3 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Garg Non- Executive √ √ √ √ √ √

4 Mr. Debashis Gupta Non- Executive - √ √ √ √ √

5 Ms. Sumita Rai Non- Executive - - - √ √ √

√ = attended

Details of Risk Management Committee Meetings and Attendance

The Risk Management Committee met four times during the year. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Risk 
Management Committee meeting are as follows : 

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category Attendance at the Risk Management Committee 
Meeting held on

12-Apr-24 18-July-24 18-Oct-24 21-Jan-25

1 Mr. Parag Gupta Non- Executive √ √ √ √

2 Mr. Jagdish Thakur Non- Executive √ √ Resigned w.e.f. August 30, 2024

3 Mr. Debashis Gupta Non- Executive √ √ √ √

4 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Garg Non- Executive - - √ √

√ = attended
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Details of Advisory Committee of the Board

The Advisory Committee of the Board met four times during the year. The details of attendance of the Directors at the 
Advisory Committee of the Board meeting are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category Attendance at the Advisory Committee Meeting held on

30-Dec-24 21-Jan-25 03-Mar-25 13-Mar-25

1 Mr. Parag Gupta Non- Executive √ √ √ √

2 Mr. Debashis Gupta Non- Executive √ √ √ √

√ = attended. 

Details of Internal Committee (Anti Sexual Harassment Committee Meeting) 

The Internal Committee (Anti Sexual Harassment Committee Meeting) met three times during the year. The details 
of attendance of the Members at the Internal Committee (Anti Sexual Harassment Committee Meeting) are as 
follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Attendance at the Internal Committee (Anti Sexual Harassment Committee 
Meeting) held on

05-Sept-24 12-Dec-24 26-Mar-25

1 Ms. Jyoti Katira √ √ √

2 Ms. Sneha Khandekar √ √ √

3 Mr. Ravi Chandranath √ √ √

4 Mr. Rajendra More LoA √ LoA

5 Ms. Vijaylakshmy G Was not a member √ √

6 Mr. Rajesh Sharma √ √ √

√ = attended,   LoA= Leave of Absence

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board met once during the year. The details of attendance of the 
Directors at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board meeting is as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category Attendance at the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee Meeting held on

13-Mar-25

1 Ms. Sumita Rai Non- Executive √

2 Mr. Sunder Kataria MD & CEO √

3 Mr. Debashis Gupta Non- Executive √

√ = attended.

General Meetings

Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company were held at Navi Mumbai / 
Mumbai and the details for the past three years are as under : 

General Meeting 16th AGM 17th AGM 18th AGM

Year 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Venue 301, Centrepoint, 

Dr. B. Ambedkar Road,
Parel, Mumbai- 400012.

SHCIL House, P-51, 
T.T.C. Industrial Area, 
MIDC, Mahape, Navi 
Mumbai-400710.

SHCIL House, P-51, 
T.T.C. Industrial Area, 
MIDC, Mahape, Navi 
Mumbai-400710.

Date of Meeting September 16, 2022 September 15, 2023 September 18, 2024

General Meeting 18th EGM

Year 2023-24
Venue SHCIL House, P-51, T.T.C. Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai-400710.

Date of Meeting July 13, 2023.
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The special resolutions passed during the last three General Meetings, were as under:

Meeting No. Resolution No. Particulars of Resolution

18th EGM 1 Extension in the tenure of Fully Convertible Debenture (FCDs) of StockHolding 
Document Management Services Limited of Rs.25 crores for a further period of 3 years.

2 Appointment of Mr. Umesh Punde as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD 
& CEO), in addition to his role as Executive Vice-Chairman for the term October 21, 
2022 - March 31, 2023.

3 Redesignation of Mr. Umesh Punde as Executive Vice Chairman & Whole Time Director 
(WTD) for the term April 1, 2023 - May 17, 2023.

4 Appointment of Ms. Pandula Sreelakshmi as Managing Director & Chief Executive 
Officer (MD & CEO) w.e.f. April 1, 2023.

Governance Codes

Code of Business Conduct

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct (“the Code of Conduct”) which is applicable to the Board of 
Directors and all Employees of the Company. The Code requires Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically 
and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courteous and respectful manner.

The objective of this Code of Conduct is to create an environment where all the Board Members, Senior Management and 
other employees of Company maintain an ethical standard to promote honest and ethical conduct, maintain a corporate 
climate in which the integrity and dignity of each individual is valued and promote assure compliance with laws, rules and 
regulations that govern the Company’s business activities; and assure the proper use of the Company’s assets.

The Code of Conduct for Directors and all the Employees of Company is based on the following fundamental principles:

• 	 Compliance with all laws/rules/regulations laid down by Government/ Regulatory agencies;

• 	 Exercising due diligence in the performance of duties;

• 	 Avoidance of conflict of interest between self-interests of Directors, Employees of Company and interests of Company.

• 	 Fairness and transparency in dealing with matters relating to Company;

• 	 Avoid any act which will put reputation of Company’s in jeopardy

Disclosures

There were no transactions of the Company of material nature with its Directors or relatives etc. that may have potential 
conflict of the interest with your Company at large.

Shareholder Information

a) Annual General Meeting

Date, time & Venue of the Annual General 
Meeting

Thursday, September 11, 2025 at 3:00 p.m.

SHCIL House, P-51, T.T.C. Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi 
Mumbai-400710.

b) Date of Book closure/record date N.A

c) Dividend payment date No dividend is announced and recommended by the Board for 
FY 2024-25. 

d)	 Listing on Stock Exchange

	 Your Company’s shares are not listed on any stock exchange.

e)	 Annual Report

 	 The Annual Report containing inter alia Audited Annual Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report 
and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto.

f)	 Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025

	 The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited (StockHolding). However, 
six individuals are holding one share each in the company as a nominee of StockHolding.

g)	 Address of correspondence

	 The Company Secretary
 	 StockHolding Document Management Services Limited 
 	 SHCIL House, P-51, T.T.C, Industrial Area
 	 MIDC, Mahape Navi Mumbai 400 710
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF

STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 
STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 
31, 2025  and the Statement of Profit & Loss (including 
other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the period 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (collectively referred to as 
‘Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Financial 
Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
and amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) 
of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended 
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 
47 of the Financial Statements regarding Company’s 
liability to the third parties due to the fire occurred / 
intrusion of flood water at Company’s Premises. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional 
judgment were of most significance in our audit of the 
Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 
2025. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole and in 
forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to 
be communicated in our report:

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Our Response

1 Defined benefit obligation

The valuation of the retirement benefit 
schemes in the Company is determined with 
reference to various actuarial assumptions 
including discount rate, future salary 
increases, rate of inflation, mortality rates 
and attrition rates. Due to the size of these 
schemes, small changes in these assumptions 
can have a material impact on the estimated 
defined benefit obligation.

We have examined the key controls over the process involving 
member data, formulation of assumptions and the financial 
reporting process in arriving at the provision for retirement 
benefits.  We tested the controls for determining the actuarial 
assumptions and the approval of those assumptions by senior 
management. We found these key controls were designed, 
implemented and operated effectively, and therefore 
determined that we could place reliance on these key controls 
for the purposes of our audit.

We tested the employee data used in calculating the obligation 
and where material, we also considered the treatment of 
curtailments, settlements, past service costs, remeasurements, 
benefits paid, and any other amendments made to obligations 
during the period. From the evidence obtained, we found the 
data and assumptions used by management in the actuarial 
valuations for retirement benefit obligations to be appropriate.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Our Response

2 Related Party Transactions 

During the period the Company has entered 
into various transactions with related parties.

Determination of transaction price for such 
related parties transactions outside the 
normal course of business is a key audit 
matter considering the significance of 
the transaction value and the significant 
judgements involved in determining the 
transaction value.

Our audit procedures included considering the compliance with 
the various requirements for entering into such related party 
transactions.

We have read the approvals obtained for the transactions.

We have assessed the disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 24 
“Related Party Disclosures”.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to preparation of these Financial Statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial 
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
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draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements including disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, 
we give in “Annexure A” - a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit;

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company, 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including other comprehensive income, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

d)	 In our opinion the Financial Statements comply 
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

e)	 On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2025, from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us, managerial remuneration has been paid 
or provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 
197 read with Schedule V of the Act;

g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, we 
report that:

i)	 	The Company does not have any pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position other than those mentioned in the 
notes to the accounts;

ii)	 The Company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;

iii)	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investors Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv)	 (a)	 As per the information and explanation 
given to us by the management, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or 
in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by 
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or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

	 (b) 	As per the information and explanation 
given to us by the management, no funds 
have been received by the company 
from any person or entity, including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

	 (c)	 On the basis of above representations, 
nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the above 
representations contained any material 
mis-statement.

v)	 The Company has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the period.

vi)	 Based on our examination which included test 
checks, the company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the period for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with.

i)	 As required under section 143(5), we report on the following directions issued under the section as under : 

Sr. No. Directions Replies

1. Whether the company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through 
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of 
accounting transactions outside IT system on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes.
The accounting transactions are processed in 
following IT Systems 

1. 	 Tally ERP9 / Tally Prime EL 2.1

2. 	 Record Management Solution (RMS)

3.  Financial Accounting Software (FAS) 

4.  Client Tariff Master (CTMS) 

5.  Digitization and Hosting System (DHS) 

6.  Payment recovery Management (PRM)

Once all the invoices are raised from DHS and 
RMS they are sent to Tally via FAS and the same is 
confirmed by report fetched from FAS. Final Income 
is booked in Tally ERP9 / Tally Prime EL 2.1, on the 
basis of reports generated in FAS.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/
interest etc. made by a lender to the company due 
to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, 
the financial impact may be stated.  Whether such 
cases are properly accounted for? (in case, lender 
is a Government company, then its direction is also 
applicable for statutory auditor of lender company).

Not Applicable

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for specific schemes from Central/ 
State Government or its agencies were properly 
accounted for/ utilized as per its term and 
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Not Applicable

Place	 : Kolhapur For and on behalf of
Dated	: April 22, 2025 abm & associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 105016W/W100015

(Anil Chikodi)	
Partner
Membership No. 107659
UDIN : 25107659BMIAUX9569
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ANNEXURE-A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the 
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ our 
report to the members of STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED, (‘the Company’) for 
the period ended on March 31, 2025. We report that:

i.	 In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

(a)	 (A)	 The Company is maintaining proper 
records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant & Equipment;

	 (B)	 The Company is maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets;

(b)	 The Company has a regular programme of 
physical verification of fixed assets which is, 
in our opinion, reasonable having regard to 
the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. In accordance with this programme, 
certain fixed assets have been physically verified 
by the management during the period and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed on 
such verification;

(c)	 As per the information and explanations given 
to us by the management, the Company does 
not have any immovable property held in its 
name. We further report that the Company 
has recognized Right-of-Use (ROU) assets in 
accordance with Ind AS 116, “Leases”, for 
properties taken on lease, for which the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favor of the 
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 
3(i)(c) of the Order relating to title deeds of 
immovable properties are not applicable to the 
Company in respect of such leased properties 
and ROU assets.

(d)	 As per the information and explanation given 
to us by the management, the Company has 
not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible 
assets or both during the period and hence 
provisions of Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company;

(e)	 As per the information and explanation given 
to us by the management, no proceedings 
have been initiated or are pending against 
the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder 
and hence provisions of Clause 3(i)(e) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. 	 In respect of its inventories:

(a)	 As per the information and explanation given 
to us by the management, the Company does 
not hold any inventories and hence provisions of 
Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company;

(b)	 As per the information and explanation given 
to us by the management, the Company has 
availed working capital facility from bank on 
the basis of security of current assets. Further, 
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
Company with such bank are in agreement with 
the books of account of the Company.

iii.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to any company, firm, Limited 
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(iii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not given any loan or 
guarantee or provided any security nor made any 
investments as specified in Section 185 and 186 of 
the Act. Clause 3(iv) of the Order is, therefore, not 
applicable to the Company for the period under audit. 

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to 
be deposits from the public within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules 
framed thereunder to the extent notified.

vi.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company does not require maintaining 
cost records as prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

vii.	 (a)	 According to the records of the Company, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, GST, sales tax, wealth 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax or cess and other statutory dues applicable to 
it;

	 Further, according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income-tax, GST, sales tax, 
wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax or cess and other statutory dues were 
outstanding, as at March 31, 2025, for a period 
of more than six months from the date they 
became payable;

(b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 
GST, sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or 
duty of excise or value added tax or cess which 
have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute, except for the following dues;
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State Year GST Penalty Interest Total

UP 2018-19 (#) 2,22,036 22,204 2,40,018 4,84,258 

UP 2019-20 (#) 4,59,084 45,908 4,13,402 9,18,394 

UP 2020-21 (#) 18,52,119 1,85,211 13,34,439 33,71,770 

MH 2018-19 5,73,505 57,350 6,19,951 12,50,807 

MH 2019-20 (*) 17,05,589 1,70,559 19,76,054 38,52,202 

WB 2020-21(#) 29,615 30,000 21,337      80,952 

Total 48,41,948 5,11,232 46,05,202 99,58,383 

(#) Appeal against the order of demand is yet to be filed before GST  Tribunal, as the Tribunal has not been 
formed/ due date of filing of appeal is not over.

(*) Amnesty application filed against the demand order under GST Amnesty Scheme 2024

viii.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, there are no transactions that are not recorded 
in the books of accounts and have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the period in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix.	 (a)	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given to us 
by the management, we are of the opinion that 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
dues to financial institutions and bank;

(b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the company has not been declared 
willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government 
authority;

(c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, term loans have been applied for the 
purpose for which it is taken;

(d)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, and the procedures performed by us, 
and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that no 
funds raised on short-term basis have been used 
for long-term purposes by the company except 
in case of an overdraft facility wherein Bank 
has permitted utilisation of funds for capital 
expenditure;

(e)	 The Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company;

(f)	 The Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

x.	 (a)	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given to 
us by the management, the Company has not 
raised any money by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer (including debt instruments) 
and hence provisions of Clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company;

(b)	 The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during 
the period under audit and hence provisions of 
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company

xi.	 During the course of our examination of the 
books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to 
us, we have neither come across any instance 
of material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company noticed or reported during the period, 
nor have we been informed of any such case 
by the management. Clause 3(xi)(a) to (c) of 
the Order is, therefore, not applicable to the 
Company for the period under audit.

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the 
Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 
Company and hence provisions of Clause 3(xii) 
(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii.	 The Company has entered into the transaction 
with the related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of the Section 177 and 188 of the Act. 
The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements 
as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

xiv.	 (a)	 In our opinion and based on our examination, 
the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business;

(b)	 We have considered the internal audit reports 
of the company issued till date, for the period 
under audit.

xv.	 The Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or the persons connected 
with him and hence provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xvi.	 (a)	 The Company is not required to be registered 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 and hence provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(a) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company;

(b)	 The company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 
which requires the Company to obtain Certificate 
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of 
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 
and hence provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company;

(c)	 The company is not a Core Investment Company 
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India and hence provisions of 
Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company;

(d)	 The Group does not have any CIC as part of the 
Group, and hence provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(d) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the company has not incurred any cash losses 
during the period under audit as well as in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the period, and hence provisions of 
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xix.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 

and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, the Company is having 
financial support from its Holding Company and 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report that company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has spent amount as required in 
the Section 135 of the said Act. There were no such 
unspent amounts requiring transfer during the year.

xxi.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company need not prepare consolidated 
financial statements. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 
3(xxi) (a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company

Place	 : Kolhapur For and on behalf of
Dated	: April 22, 2025 abm & associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 105016W/W100015

(Anil Chikodi)	
Partner
Membership No. 107659
UDIN : 25107659BMIAUX9569
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ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the 
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ our 
report to the members of STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED, (‘the Company’) for 
the period ended on March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

Opinion

We have audited internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as 
of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements of the Company for the period 
then ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material aspects, 
an adequate internal financial control system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2025 based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for the Internal 
Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities includes design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of business, including adherence 
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of the assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) 
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued 
by the ICAI. Those Standards and Guidance note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide a reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and preparation of financial statements for external 
purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:

1.	 Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company;

2.	 Provide reasonable assurance that the transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the Company; and

3.	 Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
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material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial control over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Place	 : Kolhapur For and on behalf of
Dated	: April 22, 2025 abm & associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 105016W/W100015

(Anil Chikodi)	
Partner
Membership No. 107659
UDIN : 25107659BMIAUX9569
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR 
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF STOCKHOLDING DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
The preparation of financial statements of StockHolding Document Management Services Limited for the year ended 31 
March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is 
the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under 
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 22 April 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of the 
financial statements of StockHolding Document Management Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under 
section 143(6)(a) of the Act. 

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Vijay Nanalal Kothari)
Principal Director of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07.07.2025
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  5,367.69  5,785.71 

(b) Capital work-in-progress  -  - 

(c) Right of use lease assets 3  2,423.48  2,657.56 

(d) Investment Property  -  - 

(e) Goodwill  -  - 

(f) Other intangible assets 3  6.88  0.48 

(g) Intangible assets under development  -  - 

(h) Biological Assets other than bearer plants  -  - 

(i) Financial Assets

(i) 	 Investments  -  - 

(ii) 	 Trade receivables  -  - 

(iii) 	 Loans  -  - 

(iv) 	 Other financial assets 

	 - Security deposits 4  395.26  599.67 

	 - Margin money deposits with banks 5  249.94  243.75 

(j) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 749.60 1049.23

(k) Non current tax assets (net) 7  294.03  273.26 

(l) Other non-current assets 8  575.48  537.77 

 10,062.36  11,147.43 

Current assets

(a) Inventories  -  - 

(b) Financial Assets

(i) 	 Investments  -  - 

(ii) 	 Trade receivables 9 3,636.96 3,288.26

(iii) 	 Cash and cash equivalents 10 135.94 605.80

(iv) 	 Bank balances other than (iii) above 11  163.56  166.34 

(v) 	 Loans  -  - 

(vi) 	 Other current financial assets

	 - Security deposits 12 206.32 72.37

	 - Interest accrued 13  0.86  0.04 

(c) Current tax assets (net)  -  - 

(d) Other current assets 14 2,247.67 1,901.51

6,391.31 6,034.32

TOTAL ASSETS 16,453.67 17,181.75

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share capital 15 5,575.00 5,575.00

(b) Other Equity 16  148.40  (627.45)

5,723.40 4,947.55

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) 	 Borrowings 17 3,146.17 3,280.00

(ii) 	 Right of use lease liability 17 2,429.35 2,591.90

(iii) 	 Trade payables  -  - 

(iv) 	 Other financial liabilities  -  - 

(b) Provisions 18 104.05 89.27

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  -  - 

(d) Other Non-current liabilities  -  - 

 5,679.57 5,961.17

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) 	 Borrowings 19 402.21 404.95

(ii) 	 Right of use lease liability 19 892.39 939.76

(iii) 	 Trade payables 20

(a) 	 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 12.71 25.71

(b) 	 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

1668.33 3330.04

(iv) 	 Other financial liabilities 21 1,722.36 1,233.31

(b) Other current liabilities 22 283.57 278.45

(c) Provisions 23 69.13 60.81

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  -  - 

5,050.70 6,273.03

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  16,453.67  17,181.75 

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For abm & associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105016W/W- 100015   

Anil Chikodi Dimple Hasija Sunder Kataria Dinesh Kumar Garg Parag Gupta
Partner Company Secretary MD & CEO Director Director
Membership No: 107659 DIN: 10702625 DIN: 08925290 DIN: 02130316

Place	: 	Kolhapur Place	: 	Mumbai Jyoti Katira Debashis Gupta
Date : 	April 22, 2025 Date : 	April 22, 2025 CFO Director

DIN: 08741938
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

I. Revenue from operations 24  9,830.73  9,868.44 

II. Other income 25  143.50  195.80 

III. Total Income (I + II)  9,974.23  10,064.24 

IV. Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 26  1,662.15  1,531.92 

Finance costs 27  719.85  797.25 

Depreciation and amortization expense 3  788.15  776.72 

Right of use depreciation 3  1,021.84  1,044.70 

Other expenses 28  4,394.47  5,035.59 

Total expenses (IV)  8,586.46  9,186.18 

V. Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  1,387.77  878.06 

VI. Exceptional items 29  (294.74)  308.89 

VII. Profit/ (loss) before tax (V - VI)  1,093.03  1,186.95 

VIII. Tax Expense:

(1) 	 Current Tax

	 -  Current period  -  - 

	 -  Pertaining to previous period  -  - 

(2) 	 Deferred Tax

	 -  Current period  304.05  300.57 

	 -  Pertaining to previous period  -  74.68 

 304.05  375.25 

IX. Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operations 
(VII-VIII)

 788.98  811.70 

X. Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations  -  - 

XI. Tax expense of discontinued operations  -  - 

XII. Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI)  -  - 

XIII. Profit/ (loss) for the period (IX+XII)  788.98  811.70 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

XIV. Other Comprehensive Income 30

A 	 (i) 	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (17.55)  (17.97)

	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss

 4.42  4.52 

B 	 (i) 	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 

	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 -  - 

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) 
(Comprising Profit/ (loss) and Other Comprehensive Income 
for the period)

 775.85  798.25 

XVI Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation) 32

(1) 	 Basic  1.42  1.46 

(2) 	 Diluted  1.42  1.46 

XVII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation)

(1) 	 Basic  -  - 

(2) 	 Diluted  -  - 

XVIII Earnings per equity share(for discontinued & continuing 
operations)

32

(1) 	 Basic  1.42  1.46 

(2) 	 Diluted  1.42  1.46 

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For abm & associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105016W/W- 100015   

Anil Chikodi Dimple Hasija Sunder Kataria Dinesh Kumar Garg Parag Gupta
Partner Company Secretary MD & CEO Director Director
Membership No: 107659 DIN: 10702625 DIN: 08925290 DIN: 02130316

Place	: 	Kolhapur Place	: 	Mumbai Jyoti Katira Debashis Gupta
Date : 	April 22, 2025 Date : 	April 22, 2025 CFO Director

DIN: 08741938
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

A. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

(` in lakhs)

Period ended  Balances at the 
beginning of the 
reporting period 

 Changes in equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors 

 Restated balance 
at the beginning 

of the current 
reporting period 

 Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the period 

 Balance at 
the end of the 

reporting period 

March 31, 2025  5,575.00  -  -  -  5,575.00 

March 31, 2024  5,575.00  -  -  -  5,575.00 

B. 	 OTHER EQUITY 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Equity component 
of borrowings from 

holding company

Securities 
premium

Retained 
earnings

Other 
comprehensive 

income

Total

Opening Balance as on April 
01, 2024

 159.54  1,125.00  (1,879.64)  (32.35)  (627.45)

Profit/ (loss) for the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 -  -  788.98  -  788.98 

Acturial gain/(loss) on defined 
employee benefit plan

 -  -  -  (13.13)  (13.13)

Closing Balance as on March 
31, 2025

 159.54  1,125.00  (1,090.66)  (45.48)  148.40 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 (` in lakhs)

Particulars Equity component 
of borrowings from 

holding company

Securities 
premium

Retained 
earnings

Other 
comprehensive 

income

Total

Opening Balance as on April 01, 2023  159.54  1,125.00  (2,691.34)  (18.90)  (1,425.70)

Profit/ (loss) for the year ended March 31, 2024  -  -  811.70  -  811.70 

Acturial gain/(loss) on defined employee benefit plan  -  -  -  (13.45)  (13.45)

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2024  159.54  1,125.00  (1,879.64)  (32.35)  (627.45)

Note: 

Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued. Share premium includes any premiums 
received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share 
premium, net of any related income tax benefits. Other components of equity include the following:

• 	 Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability – comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and 
financial assumptions and the return on plan assets. 

• 	 Retained earnings includes all current and prior period retained profits

As per our report of even date

For abm & associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105016W/W- 100015   

Anil Chikodi Dimple Hasija Sunder Kataria Dinesh Kumar Garg Parag Gupta
Partner Company Secretary MD & CEO Director Director
Membership No: 107659 DIN: 10702625 DIN: 08925290 DIN: 02130316

Place	: 	Kolhapur Place	: 	Mumbai Jyoti Katira Debashis Gupta
Date : 	April 22, 2025 Date : 	April 22, 2025 CFO Director

DIN: 08741938
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities :

Profit/(Loss) before tax  1,093.03  1,186.95 

Adjusted for:

Depreciation/amortisation  788.15  776.72 

Right of use depreciation  1,021.84  1,044.70 

Provision for doubtful debts expense  188.24  - 

Provision for expense written back  (62.50)  (71.08)

Provision for doubtful debts written back  -  (9.77)

Bad debts written off  46.76  70.84 

Fixed assets written off  1.74  0.39 

Deposits written off  6.74  - 

Sale of property, plant & equipment  (0.09)  (0.02)

Interest/Dividend income  (40.02)  (23.06)

Interest on Non convertible debentures/Fully convertible debentures/ Cash 
credit facility/ancillary borrowing costs

 361.91  419.16 

Right of use lease interest  357.94  378.09 

Gain on Ind As adjustments of leases and security deposits  (27.78)  - 

Acturial gains/(losses) on employee benefits  (17.55)  (17.97)

 2,625.37  2,568.00 

Operating Profit / (loss) before working capital changes  3,718.40  3,754.95 

Changes in working capital

(Increase )/ Decrease in Trade Receivables, Long term & Short term Loans & 
Advances and Other Current Assets

 (870.36)  (583.84)

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables, Other Liabilities & Provisions  (1,069.40)  642.71 

 (1,939.76)  58.87 

Cash generated from operations  1,778.64  3,813.82 

Taxes paid/ refund (including taxes deducted at source)  (20.77)  377.86 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  1,757.87  4,191.68 

Cash flows from investing activities :

Purchase of PPE including capital work in progress & capital advances  (438.72)  (481.43)

Sale of assets/scrap  1.67  0.32 

Redemption of fixed deposits  1,698.17  1,262.98 

Investment in fixed deposits  (1,701.58)  (1,366.74)

Interest/dividend received  39.20  23.30 

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities  (401.26)  (561.57)

Cash flows from financing activities :

Term loan  (334.41)  (323.78)

Bank overdraft facility  197.84  (1,179.73)

Interest on inter-corporate deposit/ non convertible debentures  (362.07)  (396.66)

Lease payments on right of use assets  (1,327.84)  (1,312.34)
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Net cash from financing activities  (1,826.47)  (3,212.51)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  (469.86)  417.60 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period  605.80  188.20 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period  135.94  605.80 

Note: Cash and cash equivalents include the following :

Cash balance  -  -

Balance with banks:

- 	 in current accounts  135.94  502.19 

- 	 in deposit accounts  -  103.00 

- 	 cheques on hand  -  0.61 

- 	 bank overdraft facility - -
 135.94  605.80 

Note: Cash Flow Statement is prepared under “Indirect Method” as set out in Accounting Standard (IndAs-7) on “Cash 
Flow Statement”.

Foot Note: 

Net Debt Reconciliation 

For FY 2024-25   

(` in lakhs)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents  135.94  605.80 

Liquid investments  -  - 

Current borrowings  (402.21)  (404.95)

Current ROU lease liability  (892.39)  (939.76)

Non current borrowings  (3,146.17)  (3,280.00)

Non current ROU lease liability  (2,429.35)  (2,591.90)

Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents  (6,734.18)  (6,610.81)

(` in lakhs)

Other Assets Liabilities from financing activities

Cash and 
bank overdraft

Liquid 
Investments

Non-current 
borrowings

Current 
borrowings

Non cash 
movements

Total

Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash 
Equivalents as at 1 April 2024

 605.80  -  3,280.00  404.95  3,531.66  (6,610.81)

Cash Flows  (469.86)  -  (133.83) (2.74)  -  (333.29)

Interest expense  -  -  344.87 11.60  -  (356.47)

Interest paid  -  -  (345.05)  (11.62)  -  356.67 

Interest accrued  -  -  0.18  0.02  -  (0.20)

Other non-cash movements

-  Acquisitions/disposals  -  -  -  -  -  - 

-  Fair value adjustments  -  -  -  -  (209.92)  209.92 

(Net debt)/ Cash & Cash 
Equivalents as at 31 March 2025

 135.94  -  3,146.17  402.21  3,321.74  (6,734.18)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

For FY 2023-24   

(` in lakhs)

Other Assets Liabilities from financing activities

Cash and bank 
overdraft

Liquid 
Investments

Non-current 
borrowings

Current 
borrowings

Non cash 
movements

Total

Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash 
Equivalents as at 1 April 2023

 188.20  -  1,184.72  4,003.74  3,512.24  (8,512.50)

Cash Flows  417.60  -  2,095.28  (3,598.79)  -  1,921.11 

Interest expense  -  -  362.69 45.46  -  (408.15)

Interest paid  -  -  (385.22)  (45.49)  -  430.71 

Interest accrued  -  -  22.53  0.03  -  (22.56)

Other non-cash movements

-  Acquisitions/disposals  -  -  -  -  -  - 

-  Fair value adjustments  -  -  -  -  19.42  (19.42)

(Net debt)/ Cash & Cash 
Equivalents as at 31 March 2024

 605.80  -  3,280.00  404.95  3,531.66  (6,610.81)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2024 

Financing Cash Flow Non cash flow/ 
Exchange loss/ gain

 As at 
March 31, 2025 Proceeds Repayment

Long term borrowings

FCD's  2,500.00 - - -  2,500.00 

Term Loan 1,184.58   - 334.41 -  850.17 

Short term borrowings

Overdraft 0.37  17,797.83  17,599.99  198.21 

As per our report of even date

For abm & associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105016W/W- 100015   

Anil Chikodi Dimple Hasija Sunder Kataria Dinesh Kumar Garg Parag Gupta
Partner Company Secretary MD & CEO Director Director
Membership No: 107659 DIN: 10702625 DIN: 08925290 DIN: 02130316

Place	: 	Kolhapur Place	: 	Mumbai Jyoti Katira Debashis Gupta
Date : 	April 22, 2025 Date : 	April 22, 2025 CFO Director

DIN: 08741938
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1. 	 Background

	 StockHolding Document Management Services Ltd (formerly known as SHCIL Projects Ltd.) was incorporated on 
August 10, 2006 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd (SHCIL) (A subsidiary 
of IFCI Ltd w.e.f. March 28, 2014). The Company provides physical storage services, digitization services and sale of 
software products & services.

2. 	 Material Accounting Policies

i)	 Overall consideration

	 The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement basis 
summarised below. 

ii)	 Statement of Compliance

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind 
AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

iii)	 Basis of preparation

	 These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments 
and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting 
period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities have been 
classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. As the Company’s normal 
operating cycle is not clearly identifiable due to the varying nature of each project, the normal operating cycle 
has been assumed to be twelve months.

	 The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company 
considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto 
in use.

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupees (INR) and all values are in lakhs, except 
when otherwise indicated.

iv)	 Use of Estimates

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in 
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

v)	 Revenue

	 Revenue is recognised on the basis of control-based revenue recognition model by adopting five step 
application principle:

i.	 Identification of the contracts with the customer.

ii.	 Identification of the performance obligations in the contract.

iii.	 Determination of the transaction price which is adjusted for variable consideration on account of various 
discounts and schemes offered, if any, by the Company as part of the contract with the customer.
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iv.	 Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii).

v.	 Recognition of revenue when the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

	 Based on the aforementioned model, timing of recognition of revenue for various products/services offered by 
the Company is as follows:

	 Income from Physical Custody Services is recognized on a monthly basis as per agreements with customers.

	 Income from Digitization Services is recognized on the basis of number of documents scanned.

	 Income from software products is recognized on delivery/installation of the software product. The revenue for 
Annual Maintenance Services provided in case of software products is recognized pro rata over the period in 
which the services are rendered.

	 Income from software services is recognized over the contract period.

vi)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Items of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenses related to acquisition and installation of 
the concerned asset and excludes any tax for which input credit is taken. Subsequent expenditure related to an 
item of PP&E is added to its book value only if the increase in future benefits from the existing asset is beyond 
its previously assessed standard of performance. 

	 Depreciation on PP&E is charged under the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as specified 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, for the following:

Class of Assets Useful life as per the 
Companies Act, 2013

Useful life adopted by 
the Company

Tangible Assets:

Computers:

-	 End user devices such as desktops, 
laptops etc.

3 3

Furniture & Fixtures 10 10

Plant & Machinery 15 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 10

Office Equipment – Others 5 5

Leasehold improvements Not specified Amortised over the 
period of lease

		  For the below tabulated class of assets, a lesser useful life than prescribed in Schedule II has been estimated:

Asset Class Useful Life Adopted Useful Life as per 
Companies Act, 2013

Computers - Servers & Networks 4 6

Office Equipment - Mobiles 2 5

Vehicles 3 8

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates the assets over estimated useful lives.

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis from / upto the month of acquisition /sale or disposal. Assets 
costing less than Rs. 5,000/- individually are depreciated fully in the year in which such assets are purchased.

An item of PP&E and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
at each financial year end and adjusted, if appropriate.
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vii)	 Leased assets

	 A right-of-use asset representing the right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing 
the obligation to make lease payments is recognized for all leases over 1 year on initial recognition basis. 
Discounted committed & expected future cash flows recognised as right-of-use asset and lease liability and 
depreciation on the asset portion on straight-line basis & interest on liability portion (net of lease payments) on 
effective interest basis (EIR) basis is recognized over the expected lease term. No right-of-use asset is created 
for short term leases (i.e. lease term less than 1 year) and leases of low value items (i.e. lease of asset with 
original cost of less than Rs.1 lakh).

	 After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest 
and reduced for lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if 
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payments or as 
a result of a rent review or change in the relevant index or rate. Any gain or loss relating to the partial or full 
termination of the lease is recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and balance 
amount (if any) still remaining taken to statement of profit and loss.

viii)	 Financial instruments

	 A. 	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

	 All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade 
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through 
profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. 

B. 	 Subsequent measurement – Financial assets

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

•	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

•	 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

•	 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

		  Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and

(b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

	 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or 
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. 

	 Debt instrument at FVOCI

	 A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a)	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and

(b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

	 Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income 
(recognised using the EIR method), impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from 
the equity to P&L. 
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	 Debt instrument at FVTPL

	 FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

	 In addition, the Company may at initial recognition elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

	 Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the P&L.

	 Derecognition of financial assets

	 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

•	 The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

•	 It transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAs 109.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets which have not been fair valued to profit and loss:

	 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables 
and contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind-AS 115.The application of simplified 
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

	 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as expense/income in 
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line in the P&L as an impairment 
loss or gain. 

C. 	 Subsequent Measurement - Financial liabilities

	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

	 Gains or losses on such liabilities are recognised in the profit or loss. 

	 Loans and borrowings

	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. 

	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.

	 This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

	 Derecognition

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

ix)	 Income taxes

	 Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit 
or loss for the year. Provision for current income tax is made on the basis of the assessable income under the Income 
tax Act, 1961.
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	 Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

	 Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary 
difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future 
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any 
unused tax loss or credit.

x)	 Post-employment benefits and long/short-term employee benefits

	 Post-employment benefit plans

	 The Company provides post-employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 mployee Benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plans and the contributions are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the respective contributions are due.

	 Defined benefit plans

	 etirement Benefit in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligation (DBO) and is provided for on the 
basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance sheet. Actuarial 
gain or losses if any are immediately recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

	 Management estimates the DBO at each balance sheet with the assistance of independent actuaries. This is based 
on standard rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year-
end by reference to government or high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the 
benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

	 Service cost on the Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Employee contributions, 
all of which are independent of the number of years of service, are treated as a reduction of service cost. Net interest 
expense on the net defined benefit liability is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses 
resulting from remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability are included in other comprehensive income.

	 Long/Short-term employee benefits

	 Long term compensated absences are provided on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as at 
the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains/losses if any are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
Short term compensated absences are provided on estimated availment pattern.

xi)	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a realisable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

xii)	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred. Costs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets, pertaining to 
the period from commencement of activities relating to construction/development of the qualifying asset upto the 
date of capitalization of such asset is added to the cost of the assets.

xiii)	 Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

	 Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes in respect of possible obligations that arise from 
past events but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company.
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	 Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements by way of notes to accounts, when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

xiv)	 Insurance claims

	 Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted to the extent that the 
amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is virtually certain to expect ultimate collection.

xv)	 Material accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

	 When preparing the financial statements, management makes a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

	 The following are material management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have 
the most material effect on the financial statements.

	 Useful lives of depreciable assets

	 Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets annually, based on the expected utility 
of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of 
certain software and IT equipment.

	 Lease term of right-of-use assets

	 Management reviews its estimate of the lease term of right-of-use assets at each reporting date, based on the 
expected utility of the leased property. Uncertainties in this estimate relate to business obsolescence/discontinuance 
that may change the lease term for certain right-of-use assets.

	 Impairment of non-financial assets 

	 Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets 
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based 
on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring 
activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s 
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF 
model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

	 Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

	 Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates 
of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may 
significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

xvi)	 Recent accounting pronouncements 	

A.	 Notified and effective from 1st April 2024

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA has notified Ind AS – 117 
Insurance Contracts & consequential amendments to the other standards and amendments to Ind AS 116 – 
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. 

	 The Company has reviewed this new pronouncement and based on its evaluation has determined that it does 
not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

B.	 Notified but not yet effective

	 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Non Current Assets

Financial Assets

4	 Security and Other Deposits*

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated 395.26 599.67

395.26 599.67

	 *Present value discounting has not been done for deposits where maturity date is not determinable.

5	 Margin Money Deposits With Banks

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Deposits with banks * 249.94 243.75

249.94 243.75

	 * Placed as lien against bank guarantees

6	 Deferred Tax Assets  (Net)

	 The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising on account of timing differences are as under:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Deferred Tax Assets (A)

Provision for doubtful debts/advances 282.83 235.45

Employee benefits 43.58 37.77

Unabsorbed tax losses/expenses carried forward 486.09 865.06

Net right of use lease assets/liabilities 231.13 220.00

1043.63 1358.28

Deferred Tax Liabilities (B)

Depreciation 294.03 309.05

Net Deferred Tax Assets (A-B)  749.60 1049.23

	 Deferred tax as on March 31, 2025 has been measured using the effective tax rate of 25.168%.	

	 Further changes in tax rates are expected in future years but these changes will be enacted separately in respective 
years and hence are not recognised in the financial statements.

7	 Non Current Tax Assets

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Advance payment of tax and taxes deducted at source 294.03 273.26

294.03 273.26
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8	 Other Non Current Assets

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Capital advances 565.10 531.61

Prepaid expenses 10.38 6.06

Receivable from Stockholding Document Management Services Ltd's 
employees group gratuity scheme

- 0.10

575.48 537.77

Current Assets

Financial Assets

9	 Trade Receivables *

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Secured - -

Unsecured

Considered good 3664.46 3307.10

Less : Provision for expected credit losses  (27.50) (18.84)

3636.96 3288.26

Credit impaired 1079.16 907.77 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts (1079.16) (907.77)

 -    -   

3636.96 3288.26

* - Includes dues from SHCIL (holding company) 1187.83 1517.47

* - Includes dues from SSL (fellow subsidiary) 7.09 2.19

* - Includes dues from IFCI (ultimate holding company) 2.69 2.46

* - Includes dues from IFCI Factors (fellow subsidiary)  0.66 6.45

* - Includes dues from IFCI Venture Capital Funds (fellow subsidiary)  0.48 6.08

	 Debtors ageing shown under Note 41 (b)

10	 Cash and Cash equivalents

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

-  Cash on hand  - -

-  Balance with banks

-  in current/ overdraft accounts  135.94  502.19 

-  in deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)  -  103.00 

-  Cheques in hand  -  0.61 

 135.94  605.80 
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11	 Other Balances with Banks

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

 - In deposit  accounts  163.56  166.34 

 163.56  166.34 

Other Current Financial Assets

12	 Security and Other Deposits

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated  206.32  72.37 

 206.32  72.37 

13	 Interest Accrued

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

On fixed deposits  0.86  0.04 

 0.86  0.04 

14	 Other Current Assets

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Prepaid expenses  94.42  105.86 

Cenvat/GST  receivable  685.73  969.82 

Other advances receivable  11.89  10.52 

Others

Accrued income (other than interest accrued on fixed deposits) - 
Contract asset

 1,472.71  824.21 

refer foot note 1 below

Less : Provision for expected credit losses on accrued income  (17.08)  (8.90)

 2,247.67  1,901.51 

foot note 1

Changes in contract assets are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the period 824.21 731.31

Revenue recognised during the period 1,470.67 819.13

Invoices raised during the year for contract assets at the beginning 
of the period

822.17 726.23

Balance at the end of the period 1,472.71 824.21

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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15	 Equity Share Capital

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Authorised

850,00,000 ( FY 2023-24: 850,00,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 8,500.00 8,500.00

8,500.00 8,500.00

Issued

5,57,50,000 ( FY 2023-24: 5,57,50,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 5,575.00 5,575.00

5,575.00 5,575.00

Subscribed & Paid up

5,57,50,000 (FY 2023-24: 5,57,50,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each, 
fully paid-up

5,575.00 5,575.00

5,575.00 5,575.00

	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares:	 			 

	 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining 
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding 

Particulars No. of shares No. of shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period  55,750,000  55,750,000 

Add : Shares subscribed during the period  -  - 

Less : Shares bought back during the period  -  - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the period  55,750,000  55,750,000 

	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

	 Equity Shares:

	 Face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid

Name of Shareholder March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of shares % Number of shares %

Stockholding Corporation of India Ltd  55,750,000 100  55,750,000 100

	 As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships 
of shares.

	 Details of shareholders holding by promoters

	 Equity Shares:

	 Face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid

Name of Shareholder March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of shares % % change Number of shares % % change

Stockholding Corporation of India Ltd  55,750,000 100 -  55,750,000 100 -

	 Note: Above Promoter details are as disclosed by management and relied upon by the auditor.			 
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16	 Other equity

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Equity component of borrowings from holding company

Opening 159.54 159.54

Additions  - -

Closing 159.54 159.54

Securities premium 

Opening 1125.00 1125.00

Closing 1125.00 1125.00

Retained earnings

Opening (1879.64) (2691.34)

Transferred from current year's profit & loss account 788.98 811.70

Closing (A) (1090.66) (1879.64)

Other comprehensive income

Opening (32.35) (18.90)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined employee benefit plan for the year (13.13) (13.45)

Closing (B) (45.48) (32.35)

Total retained earnings (A+B) (1136.14) (1911.99)

Total Other Equity 148.40 (627.45)

Non Current  Liabilities

17	 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Unsecured

2,50,000, 9.95% Fully Convertible Debentures of Rs.1000/- each fully 
paid up [see note (i)] 

 2,500.00  2,500.00 

Right of use lease liability (net of current portion of Rs.892.39 lakhs 
disclosed under note 19) 

 2,429.35  2,591.90 

 4,929.35  5,091.90 

Secured

Term loan [see note (ii)]  646.17  780.00 

 646.17  780.00 

 5,575.52  5,871.90 

(i) 	 All the fully convertible debentures (FCD’s) are held by holding company. The holding company shall have 
a ‘put’ option  at any point of time. SDMS shall not have any ‘call’ option. If put option is not exercised, the 
FCDs would get converted into equity shares of SDMS at then prevailing book value per share at the end of 
the third year. The FCD’s have been extended for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. July 16, 2023 at 9.95%. p. 
a. payable annually from July 16, 2023. The interest rate of 9.95% (based on prevailing rate scenarios and 
corporate spreads) is constant for the full tenure of FCD’s and in line with interest rates for similar instrument 
with no conveyance option. Hence the entire amount of FCD’s is being considered as debt and interest 
expense recognised at 9.95%.

(ii) 	 A term loan of Rs.12.39 crores has been sanctioned by State Bank of India for setting up infrastructure of 
the SBI Storage project. The loan is repayable in 70 monthly instalments (excluding moratorium period of 21 
months and already paid monthly instalments), with the first instalment commencing on 01/02/2024 and last 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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instalment falling due on 30/11/2029. The interest rate is 0.75% above 6 months MCLR (Present effective rate 
is 9.60% p.a). The loan is secured by the hypothecation of plant and machinery of the Company created out 
of bank finance and corporate guarantee given by the parent company viz Stockholding Corporation of India 
Ltd.

18	 Long term provisions

	 Provision for employee benefits

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Leave encashment  104.05  89.27 

 104.05  89.27 

	 Current  Liabilities

19	 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

-  From Banks

   Overdraft facility * 198.21 0.37

Other loans

-  From Banks

   Current maturities of long term debt 204.00 404.58

402.21 404.95

Unsecured

Current portion of ROU lease liability 892.39 939.76

1,294.60 1,344.71

	 * With IDBI Bank - Rs.5 crores: secured by an exclusive charge on entire present & future current assets of the 
company including cash and cash equivalents both present and future. With SBI - Rs.19 crores: secured against  
fixed deposits placed by the parent company viz Stockholding Corporation of India Ltd.

20	 Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer footnote below)  12.71  25.71 

Dues to holding company  1,414.94  2,813.75 

Dues to other creditors  253.39  516.29 

 1,681.04  3,355.75 

Footnote:-

The disclosures relating to Micro and Small enterprises are as under:

a) 	 Amount remaining unpaid:

i) 	 The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end 
of the accounting period *

 12.71  25.71 

ii) 	 The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the 
end of the accounting period #

 0.002  - 
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

b) 	 The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the 
amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the period

 44.85  217.29 

c) 	 The amount of interest due and payable for the period  0.21  3.27 

d) 	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
the accounting period 

 0.002  - 

e) 	 The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid

 -  - 

	 * Rs.12.71 lakhs paid to vendors by April 15, 2025

	 # Rs.0.002 lakhs paid to vendors on April 15, 2025

	 Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.25

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Less than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

(i) 	 MSME 12.71 - - - 12.71

(ii) 	 Others 659.74 498.25 449.99 60.35 1668.33

(iii) 	 Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -

(iv) 	 Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

Total 672.45 498.25 449.99 60.35 1681.04

	 Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.24

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Less than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

(i) 	 MSME  25.71  -  -  -  25.71 

(ii) 	 Others  1,195.21  621.21  612.43  901.19  3,330.04 

(iii) 	 Disputed dues- MSME  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) 	 Disputed dues- Others  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  1,220.92  621.21  612.43  901.19  3,355.75 

21	 Other Current Financial Liabilities

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Accruals for expenses 1433.27 917.66

Accruals for interest on current borrowings 0.02 -

Accruals for interest on non current borrowings 158.86 159.04

Security deposits payable 1.86 1.86

Retention money payable 83.19 110.78

Capital creditors (excluding MSME's) 11.44 36.82

Other liabilities  33.72 7.15

1,722.36 1,233.31
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22	 Other Current  Liabilities

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Advances from clients - Contract liability 6.43  5.31 

Statutory liabilities 175.10  273.14 

Provision for Payment for Statutory Matters  102.04 -

283.57 278.45

23	 Short-term Provisions

	 Provision for employee benefits 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Gratuity 30.05 18.12

Leave encashment 39.08 42.69

69.13 60.81

24	 Revenue from Operations

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Income from physical storage services 4,543.47 4,141.00 

Income from digitization services 1,475.85 1,784.17 

Income from software products/services 3,778.00 3,943.27 

Income from other projects 33.41  -   

9,830.73 9,868.44 

	 The Company has elected to use the practical expedient that there is no financing component involved when the 
credit period offered to customers is less than 12 months.

25	 Other Income

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest ( Gross)

-  On deposits with banks (at amortised cost)  40.02  23.06 

-  On income tax refund  9.16  53.88 

Provisions written back  62.50  80.87 

Miscellaneous Income  31.82  37.99 

143.50 195.80 

26	 Employee Benefits Expense

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries, allowances & bonus  1,316.43  1,095.77 

Reimbursement of expenses for deputed personnel  97.23  202.77 

Contribution to provident fund and other funds  108.60  99.80 

Staff welfare expenses  139.89  133.58 

1,662.15  1,531.92 
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27	 Finance Cost

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest on fully convertible debentures  248.75  238.61 

Interest on overdraft facility  11.60  45.46 

Interest on term loan  96.12  124.08 

Interest others  0.22  3.44 

Ancillary borrowing costs  5.22  7.57 

Right of use lease interest  357.94  378.09 

719.85 797.25 

28	 Other Expenses

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Digitization Expenses *  755.85  1,248.68 

Project trainees expenses  255.32  220.59 

Traveling and conveyance  53.10  50.95 

Repairs and maintenance  234.28  205.49 

Electricity charges  108.54  125.02 

Postage, printing & stationery  34.92  44.40 

Marketing expenses  12.43  12.65 

Directors' sitting fees  37.30  31.40 

Telephone and telecommunication  22.43  22.10 

Commission  6.85  18.98 

Rent  91.48  162.66 

Rates and taxes  14.08  6.87 

Legal and professional charges  473.53  344.30 

Recruitment and training expenses  19.64  8.12 

Payment made to statutory auditors

-  Audit fees  15.57  14.33 

-  Tax audit fees  3.20  3.05 

-  For others  0.77  0.17 

Insurance  71.29  66.39 

Bank charges  3.25  2.14 

Software expenses  1,458.15  1,964.57 

Transportation expenses  174.89  166.93 

Packing expenses  9.55  15.91 

Security expenses  195.87  187.44 

Computer hire charges  13.07  13.53 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses  13.25  -   

Bad debts written off  46.76  70.84 

Brokerage on rental premises  3.28  -   

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Loss on sale of fixed assets  0.09  -   

Assets written off  1.74  0.39 

GST expenses  2.51  -   

Provision for impairment of receivables  188.24  -   

Other Project Expenses  27.77  -   

Fair valuation charges on corporate guarantee and on overdraft 
against fixed deposit

 15.39  -   

Exchange Gain/Loss  0.72  0.27 

Other expenses  29.36  27.42 

4,394.47 5,035.59

	 * Outsourcing expenses have been reclassified as digitization expenses.

29	 Exceptional items

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Income  -   -

Claim received from insurance  -    450.00 

 -    450.00 

Expense

Recreation cost due to loss of documents  87.80  141.11 

Payment for Statutory Matters  206.94  -   

 294.74  141.11 

Net exceptional item  (294.74)  308.89 

30	 OCI items not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability  (17.55)  (17.97)

Income tax relating to Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability  4.42  4.52 

 (13.13)  (13.45)

31	  Contingent Liabilities and commitments

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

Contingent liabilities:

a) 	Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt [refer note 47 
(b) and (c)]

(i) 	Provision for statutory matters - Proceedings in respect of a labour 
law matter is in progress and possible additional liability on 
account of  damages is not determinable at present.

- -
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

(ii) 	In respect of GST matters for the period of April 2018 to March 
2021, the Company has received four demand orders in Form 
DRC-07 for Maharashtra, Uttar Pradesh & West Bengal as 
well as two order-in-appeal for Uttar Pradesh state. The total 
demand under these six orders is Rs.48.42 lakhs along with 
interest of approximately Rs.46.05 lakhs ( till March 31, 2025) 
and penalty of Rs.5.11 lakhs. This is mainly on account of 
excess input credit (ITC) claimed in GSTR-3B as compared to ITC 
available as per GSTR 2A/2B, and GSTR 3B not filed by a vendor. 
The Company has filed appeals against three of the orders under 
section 73 of the CGST Act, 2017 & applied for amnesty scheme 
for one order related to Maharashtra state for FY 2019-20. The 
remaining two appeals are being filed by the end of April 2025, 
before their due dates in May 2025. Out of three appeal filed, 
SDMS has received two order-in-appeal, and a further appeal 
before GST tribunal will be filed once the GST tribunal for Uttar 
pradesh state is being formed.

 99.58 -

b) 	Performance Bank guarantees 453.48 465.17

Commitments:

a) 	Estimated amount of contract to be executed on capital account (net 
of advances) and not provided for

938.65 707.94

1,491.71 1,173.11

Note: Excludes taxes/freight which may be payable

32	 Earning per Share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except 
where the results are anti-dilutive.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2025

 Year ended  
March 31, 2024

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 557.50  557.50 

Number of shares at the end of the period 557.50  557.50 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 557.50  557.50 

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period 788.98  811.70 

Net Profit/(Loss) available for equity shareholders 788.98  811.70 

Basic & Diluted Earning per share (in Rs.) 1.42 1.46 

33	 Operating Leases

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2025

Year ended  
March 31, 2024

1. 	Future Minimum Lease Payments under non-cancellable 
operating lease for the period

(a) 	Not later than one year 77.89  48.83 

(b) 	Later than one year but not later than 5 years 169.12  6.71 

(c) 	More than 5 years  -    -   
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2025

Year ended  
March 31, 2024

2. 	Lease payments charged to Profit and Loss Account

Rental expenses 91.48  162.66 

Depreciation 1021.84  1,044.70 

Interest 357.94  378.09 

3. 	The Company has taken on lease a number of premises  for storage business under operating leases. The lease 
typically runs for a period of 3 to 9 years with an option to renew the lease after that period. The lease payments 
for the entire lease period are fixed at the time of entering into the lease agreement and are renegotiated 
towards  the end of the lease period in case of renewals.	

34	 Related Parties

a. 	List of Related Parties

Ultimate Holding Company IFCI Ltd 

Holding Company Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd

Fellow Subsidiaries (with whom 
transactions have taken place)

StockHolding Services Ltd (SSL) (Formerly known as SHCIL Services 
Ltd)

IFCI Factors Ltd

IFCI Ventures Capital Funds Ltd

Key Management Personnel Mr. Atul Saxena - Chairman and Additional Director 
(w.e.f September 21, 2024) 

Mr. Sunder Kataria - MD & CEO (w.e.f. July 18, 2024)

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Garg - Director 

Mr. Parag Gupta – Director 

Mr. Debashis Gupta - Director

Ms. Sumita Rai – Director ( w.e.f. July 16, 2024)

Ms. Pandula Sreelakshmi - MD & CEO (Upto May 31, 2024)

Mr. Venkatraman Iyer - Independent Director (Upto May 17, 2024)

Mr. Jagdish Thakur - Director (Upto August 30, 2024)

Ms. Jyoti Katira - CFO

Ms. Teena Dedhia - CS (Upto July 19, 2024)

Ms. Dimple Sunil Hasija - CS (w.e.f. 19 December, 2024) 

Trust wherein the Company has 
control

StockHolding Document Management Services Ltd, Employees Group 
Gratuity Assurance Scheme

The ICAI - Ind AS Transition facilitation group's bulletin dated July 31,2017 has clarified that under para 9 of Ind AS 
24, independent and non executive directors are covered under definition of KMP. Accordingly disclosure is being 
made in this section for the said purpose.

Note: The above related parties are identified by the management and relied upon by the auditor.
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35	 Payment of managerial remuneration 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(a) 	To  MD & CEO

Short-term employee benefits 51.28 58.78

Post-employment gratuity and medical benefits 2.41 3.22

Termination benefits 2.30 3.19

(b)  To Other Managerial Personnel

Short-term employee benefits 47.41 51.29

Post-employment gratuity and medical benefits 2.98 3.21

Termination benefits 1.95 2.07

108.33 121.76

	 Note: Excludes leave accrued determined actuarially, by Holding Company viz. Stock Holding Corporation of India 
Ltd.

36	 Disclosure pursuant to Ind As accounting standard – 19 ‘Employee Benefits’	 	 	

	 a) 	 Defined Contribution plans		 	 	

Contribution to provident fund Rs. 80.05 Lakhs  (FY 23-24 : Rs. 72.69 Lakhs) is recognized as an expense and 
included under the head in Company’s contribution to Employees Provident Fund & Gratuity Fund.		

	 b) 	 Defined benefit plan				  

	 The Company is statutorily required to provide for gratuity a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible 
employees. Gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees on retirement, death, incapacitation, 
termination of employment, of amounts that are based on salaries and tenure of the employees.		

	 The gratuity liability is funded by the company through contributions made to LIC.				  

	 Present Liability of Gratuity is accounted based on actuarial valuation done by a professional actuary.

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

I. 	 Actuarial assumptions :

Discount Rate 6.85% 7.24%

Rate of Return on Plan Assets * 6.85% 7.24%

Future Salary Rise** 5.00% 5.00%

	 Attrition Rate Current Year 3.00% 3.00%

* This is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Fund during 
the estimated term of the obligations.

** The Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in employment markets.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

II. 	Change in Benefit Obligation:

Liability at the beginning of the period  116.18  105.60 

Interest cost  8.41  7.91 

Current service cost  12.42  11.43 
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(Benefit paid from the Fund)  (12.74)  (25.78)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - Due to Change in 
Demographic Assumptions

 -  - 

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - Due to Change in Financial 
Assumptions

 6.23  3.19 

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - Due to Experience  10.60  13.83 

 	 Liability at the end of the period  141.10  116.18 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

III. Fair Value of Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period  98.06 95.83

Expected Return on plan assets  7.10 7.18

Contributions  19.35 21.78

(Benefit paid from the Fund)  (12.74) (25.78)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan assets  (0.73) (0.95)

	 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period  111.05 98.06

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

IV. Total Actuarial (Gain) / Loss to be recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI)

 17.55 17.97

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

V. 	Actual Return on Plan Assets  12.99 2.23

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

VI. Amount recognised in the balance sheet :

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period  111.05 98.06

Liability at the end of the period  (141.10) (116.18)

Funded Status  (30.05) (18.12)

Unrecognized past service cost  - -

Unrecognized Transition Liability  - -

Net (liability)/Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet  (30.05) (18.12)

VII. 100% of the Plan assets has been invested in Insurer Managed Funds

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

VIII. Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss 

Current service cost  12.42  11.43 

Net interest cost  1.31  0.73 

Expense recognised  13.73 12.16

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

IX. 	Expenses Recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI)

Actuarial (gains)/losses  16.83  17.02 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income  0.73  0.95 

Expense recognised in OCI  17.55  17.97 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

X. 	 Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening net liability  18.12  9.77 

Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss  13.73  12.16 

Expenses recognised in OCI  17.55  17.97 

Employers contribution  (19.35)  (21.78)

Amount recognised in balance sheet - Net liability/ (Asset)  30.05  18.12 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

XI.	 Sensitivity Analysis

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions  141.10  116.18 

Delta Effect of +1% change in rate of discounting  (15.18)  (12.00)

Delta Effect of -1% change in rate of discounting  18.00  14.26 

Delta Effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase  17.67  14.40 

Delta Effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase  (15.57)  (12.34)

Delta Effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover  2.86  3.03 

Delta Effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover  (3.26)  (3.45)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

XII. Maturity analysis of the benefit payments

Projected benefits payable in future years from date of reporting

1st following year  5.42  10.22 

2nd following year  5.69  4.74 

3rd following year  5.87  4.87 

4th following year  6.03  5.02 
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

5th following year  6.27  5.14 

Sum of years 6-10  42.36  32.89 

Sum of years 11 and above  296.21  255.07 

This plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk 
and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which 
is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 
bonds. When there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this 
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for these plans, investments are made in government 
securities, debt instruments, Short term debt instruments, Equity instruments and Asset Backed, 
Trust Structured securities as per notification of Ministry of Finance.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially 
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best 
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An 
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will 
increase the plan’s liability.

XI. 	 Expected employer’s contribution in next year is Rs.36.52 Lakhs (Actual contribution in current period is Rs. 
19.35 lakhs). 

c) 	 Compensated Absences for Employees				 

	 The Company permits encashment of leaves accumulated by its employees on retirement, separation and 
during the course of service. The liability for unexpired leave is determined and provided on the basis of 
actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date. The compensated absences liability is not funded. 		

 (i) 	 Actuarial Assumptions at the Valuation date

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Discount Rate 6.85% p.a 7.24% p.a

Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% p.a 5.00% p.a

Attrition Rate 3.00% p.a 3.00% p.a

Mortality Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban)

(ii) 	 Amount recognized in Balance Sheet and movements in net liability:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Opening Balance of Compensated Absences (X)  131.96  123.49 

Present value of Compensated Absences (As per actuary 
valuation) (Y) 

 143.13  131.96 

Unfunded / (Excess) liability of Compensated Absences 
recognised in the Profit and Loss account for the period 
(Y – X) 

 11.17  8.47 
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37	 Foreign currency related disclosures

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(a) 	Expenditure in Foreign currency - Cloud services for project  47.16  37.73 

(b) Earning in foreign currency  -    -   

(c) 	Unhedged foreign currency exposure as on reporting date  -    -   

(d) Derivative contracts outstanding as on reporting date  -    -   

38	 CSR Expenditure

a) 	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 is Rs. 13.25 lakhs  
(previous period: Nil)				  

b) 	 Amount spent during the quarter on:

(` in lakhs)

CSR activities Paid Total

(i) 	Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -

(ii) 	On purposes other than (i) above 13.25  13.25 

39	 Segment Reporting

	 The management monitors the operating results of the business units separately for the purpose of making decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss 
and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

	 The Company has four operating segments: physical storage services, digitisation services,  software services and 
other projects. In identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the Company’s service lines 
representing its main products and services.

	 Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires different technologies, marketing 
approaches and other resources. 

	 Corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating segment are not 
allocated to a segment.		

a) 	 Physical Storage Services, Digitisation of Documents, software services & Other projects have been considered 
as primary segments. The Profit & Loss account of the reportable segments is set out here below:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

b) 	 Segment Revenue

Physical Storage Services 4543.47 4141.00

Digitisation  Services 1475.85 1784.17

Software Services 3778.00 3943.27

Other Projects 33.41 -

Total Revenue 9830.73 9868.44

Segment Cost

Physical Storage Services 4064.13 4061.80

Digitisation  Services 1281.04 1754.71

Software Services 2488.30 2723.06

Other Projects 27.81 -

Total Cost 7861.28 8539.57
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

c) 	 Segment Results

Physical Storage Services 479.34 79.20 

Digitisation  Services 194.81 29.46

Software Services 1289.70 1220.21

Other Projects 5.60  -   

Total Net Revenue 1969.45 1328.87

Unallocated Expenses

Operating Expenses 703.39 621.85

Depreciation & Amortisation 21.79 24.76

Operating Profit/ (loss) 1244.27 682.26

Other income 143.50 195.80

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 1387.77 878.06

Exceptional items  (294.74) 308.89 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 1093.03 1186.95

Less: Tax 304.05 375.25

Profit/ (loss) for the period 788.98 811.70

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)  (13.13)  (13.45)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising 
Profit/ (loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the 
period)

775.85 798.25

	 Note: The segment operating profit is arrived at before allocating certain expenses to segments and such unallocable 
expense are separately disclosed.

	 The assets and liabilities of the reportable segments are set out here below:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

d) 	 Segment Assets

Physical Storage Services 10214.83 11613.98

Digitisation  Services 1730.91 2003.67

Software Services 2987.37 1566.78

Other Projects  11.71  -   

Unallocable Assets 1508.85 1997.32

Total Assets 16453.67 17181.75

e) 	 Segment Liabilities  

Physical Storage Services 7681.64 8899.94

Digitisation  Services 441.39 709.62

Software Services 1330.70 923.10

Other Projects 24.99  -   

Unallocable Liabilities 1251.56 1701.54

Total Liabilities 10730.28 12234.20

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

f) 	 Capital Employed

Physical Storage Services 2533.19 2714.04

Digitisation  Services 1289.52 1294.05

Software Services 1656.67 643.68

Other Projects  (13.28)  -   

Unallocable 257.29 295.78

Total Capital Employed (d-e) 5723.39 4947.55

	 Note: There are no reportable geographical segments.

	 Information about major customers

	 Company’s  revenues,  58% (FY 2023-24: 61%) are derived from sales to government, quasi government enterprises 
and public sector units.  The total sales to such companies amounted to Rs.5678.53 lakhs in the year ended March 
31, 2025 (FY 2023-24 - Rs. 6029.66 lakhs).

	 Revenue from physical storage and digitisation of three customers is Rs.5248.25 lakhs (FY 2023-24: Three customers 
- Rs.4971.85 Lakhs) which is 53% (FY 2023-24: 50%) of the Company’s operating revenue.

40	 Capital Management		  			 

	 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity 
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The objective of the Company’s capital management is to 
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 
benefits for other stakeholders.				  

	 The amounts managed as capital by the Company for the reporting periods under review are summarised as 
follows:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

Total equity 5723.40 4947.55

Capital 5723.40 4947.55

Non current and current borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 3548.38 3684.95

Overall financing 9271.78 8632.50

Capital-to-overall financing ratio 62% 57%

41	 Financial Risk Management		  			 

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main 
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial 
assets include security deposits, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from 
its operations.

	 The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees 
the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a risk committee that advises 
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk 
committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in 
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

a) 	 Market risk analysis						    

	 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity 
prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while 
optimising the return. The Company is mainly exposed to interest rate risk on its borrowings from banks.
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	 The following is the sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit for the period including other comprehensive income  775.85  798.25 

Effect of +1% change in rate of interest  (10.48)  (11.85)

Effect of -1% change in rate of interest  10.48  11.85 

b) 	 Credit risk analysis				  

	 Customer credit risk is managed as per the company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to 
customer credit risk management. Outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored.

	 The trade receivables at reporting date analysed by the length of time past due are as per below:

(` in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2025 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

< 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables - 
considered good

 2,288.07  621.07  487.35  211.28  56.68 3,664.45   

Undisputed trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

- - -  - - -

Undisputed trade receivables - 
credit impaired

- - 268.51 59.33 751.33 1,079.17  

Disputed trade receivables - 
considered good

- - - - - -

Disputed trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

- - - - - -

Disputed trade receivables - 
credit impaired

- - - - - -

Total  2,288.07  621.07  755.86  270.61  808.01 4,743.62   

(` in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

< 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables - 
considered good

 1,975.48  609.17  665.73  35.49  21.22  3,307.09 

Undisputed trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Undisputed trade receivables - 
credit impaired

 -  -  87.91  25.55  794.31  907.77 

Disputed trade receivables - 
considered good

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed trade receivables - 
credit impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  -

Total  1,975.48  609.17  753.64  61.04  815.53  4,214.86 

	 Major customers, being govt. undertakings and private companies having highest credit ratings, carry negligible 
credit risk. Concentration of credit risk to any private counter party (except for one customer: 6.01%)  did not 
exceed 5% of total debtors at any time during the year ended March 31, 2025.



StockHolding Document Management Services Limited 69

Financial Highlights Board & Management Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

c) 	 Liquidity risk analysis

	 The contractual cash flows of the company’s financial liabilities (including interest payments where applicable) 
are as below:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

Current:

Borrowings

	 - Within 6 months 459.07  321.23 

	 - Between 6 and 12 months 102.00  242.76 

Trade payables

	 - Within 6 months 1681.04  3,355.75 

	 - Between 6 and 12 months -  -   

Other current financial liabilities

	 - Within 6 months 1722.36  1,233.31 

	 - Between 6 and 12 months -  -   

Non Current:

Borrowings

	 - upto 5 years 3146.17  3,168.57 

	 - Later than 5 years  -    111.43 

	 The company has access to committed credit facilities as described below, of which Rs.2201.79 lakhs were 
unused at the end of the year (as at March 31, 2024 - Rs.2399.63 lakhs). The company expects to meet its 
other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

(` in lakhs)

Secured bank overdraft and cash credit facility reviewed 
annually and payable at call

 As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

Amount used 198.21 0.37

Amount unused 2201.79 2399.63

42	 Carrying amount and movement in provision for doubtful debts

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period 935.50  945.27 

Additional provisions 188.24  -   

Amount utilised -  -   

Reversals -  9.77 

Carrying amount as at the end of the period * 1123.74  935.50 

	 * including expected credit loss on accrued income
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43	 Financial assets and liabilities

	 Categories of financial assets

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

	 The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the 
ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

(a) 	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b)	 Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included 
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

(c) 	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable 
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

Carrying values of financial assets measured at amortised cost

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Fair value 
hierarchy

 As at  
March 31, 2025

 As at  
March 31, 2024

Non Current financial assets  

Security and other deposits Level 3 395.26  599.67 

Margin money deposits with banks Level 3 249.94  243.75 

Current financial assets

Security and other deposits Level 3 206.32  72.37 

Trade and other receivables Level 3 3636.96  3,288.26 

Cash and cash equivalent Level 3 135.94  605.80 

Other balances with banks Level 3  163.56  166.34 

Accrued interest on fixed deposits Level 3 0.86  0.04 

Fair values of financial assets measured at amortised cost	 					   

	 Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at amortised costs in financial 
statements approximate their fair values.

	 Categories of financial liabilities

	 Carrying value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Fair value 
hierarchy

 As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Non Current financial liabilities  

Fully convertible debentures Level 3  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Term loan Level 3  646.17  780.00 

Current financial liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt Level 3  204.00  404.58 

Overdraft facility  Level 3  198.21  0.37 

Trade payables  Level 3  1,681.04  3,355.75 

Accruals for expenses  Level 3  1,592.15  1,076.70 

Security deposits  Level 3  1.86  1.86 

Retention money  Level 3  83.19  110.78 

Other current financial liabilities  Level 3  45.16  43.97 

Fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost				  

	 Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial liabilities recognised at amortised costs in financial 
statements approximate their fair values.

	 Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income - Nil
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44	 Income taxes

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(a) 	 Income tax expense

Current taxes

 -  For current year  -    -   

 -  For earlier years  -    -   

Total of current tax  -    -   

(b) 	 Deferred taxes

Deferred tax charge/(credit) - For current period  304.05  300.57 

Deferred tax charge/(credit) - For earlier year  -    74.68 

Total of deferred tax  304.05  375.25 

Total of tax expense  304.05  375.25 

(c) 	 A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate 
to the income before taxes is summarized below:						    

Profit/ (Loss) before tax  1,093.03  1,186.95 

Enacted tax rates in India 25.168% 25.168%

Computed expected  tax expense  275.09  298.73 

Add: Tax effect of items not allowed as deduction  29.07  0.84 

Less: Tax effect of items allowed as deduction  -    -   

Add: Tax effect of earlier year  -    74.68 

Add: Others  (0.11)  1.00 

 304.05  375.25 

	 Note: The Company is entitled to set off profits from business and profession against past years unabsorbed 
depreciation and business losses. Accordingly, no provision for taxation is required to be made in the books of 
accounts.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(d) 	 The gross movement in the deferred income tax account is as per 
below:

Net deferred income tax liability/ (asset) at the beginning  (1,049.23)  (1,419.96)

Transition impact of Ind AS 116 - -

Credits/Charge relating to temporary differences  - Recognised in 
statement of profit and loss

 304.05  375.25 

Temporary differences on defined benefit obligation - Recognised 
in other comprehensive income

 (4.42)  (4.52)

Temporary differences recognised directly in equity - -

Temporary differences reclassified from equity to statement of profit 
and loss

 -    -   

Net deferred income tax liability/ (asset) at the end  (749.60)  (1,049.23)



19th Annual Report 2024-202572

Financial Highlights Board & Management Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

45	 Ratios

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Numerator Denominator Year ended
March 31, 

2025 (1)

Year ended
March 31, 

2024 (2)

% Variance 
between (1) 

and (2)

Explanation for 
changes in ratio 
more than 25%

Pursuant to the amendments to Schedule III vide MCA circular dated March 23, 2021, the following ratios are presented: 
Current ratio Current Assets Current 

Liabilities 
1.27 0.96 31.55% Decrease in 

current borrowing 
and increase in 
contract assets.

Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholders 
equity 

0.62 0.74 -16.76% -

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings 
available for 
debt service 
(EBITDA) 

Debt service 3.43 1.99 72.49% Lower utilisation 
of borrowings/ 

repayment of 
term loan has led 

to lower interest 
payments.

Return on equity ratio Profit after tax Average 
shareholders 
equity 

14.79% 17.85% -17.16% -

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods 
sold 

Average 
inventory 

Not applicable since the company is not 
engaged in any manufacturing or trading 

activities.

-

Trade receivables turnover 
ratio in months 

Operating 
sales 

Average trade 
receivables 

5.54 5.04 9.99% -

Trade payables turnover ratio Operating 
purchases 

Average trade 
payables 

Not applicable since the company is not 
engaged in any manufacturing or trading 

activities.

-

Net capital turnover ratio Operating sales Average 
working capital 

The said ratio is not relevant in view of the fact 
that current liabilities are exceeding current 

assets

-

Net profit ratio Profit after tax Operating sales 8.03% 8.23% -2.43% -

Return on capital employed 
ratio 

Earnings before 
interest and 
taxes 

Capital 
employed 
(Shareholders 
equity + total 
debt - deferred 
tax asset) 

21.27% 26.17% -18.70% -

Return on investment ratio Investment 
income 

Average 
investments 

Not applicable since the company has not made 
any investments.

-

46	 (a) 	 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current period.		
				  

	 (b) 	 The Company is not a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.				  
		

	 (c) 	 There are no transactions with the Struck off Companies under Section 248 or 560 of the Companies Act, 
2013.						    

	 (d) 	 No proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.						    

	 (e) 	 The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

 	 i. 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
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	 ii. 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.			 

	 (f) 	 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

 i. 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

 ii. 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.				 

(g) 	 The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the quarter in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, 
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.	

(h) 	 The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions 
are in agreement with the books of accounts. 						    

(i) 	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period.

(j) 	 The Company has not declared/ paid any interim/final dividend during the year.

47	 (a) 	 A fire incident occurred on December 11, 2017 at Mahape premises of the company. 			 

	 (b) 	 The Company has received claims for loss of documents from its clients. Pending ascertainment of actual claim, 
the Company has not provided/disclosed  for such claim/contingent liabilities and corresponding insurance 
claim receivable in the books of accounts as on March 31, 2025. Also, the Company is a party to legal 
proceedings but does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have any adverse effect on its financial 
conditions, results of operations or cash flows.  The management has been advised by its legal counsel, that 
the company has a good case on merits and the likelihood of the compensation, as sought, being granted is 
remote. Hence such claims have also not been considered as contingent liabilities.

(c) 	 The Vijayawada premises of the company was inundated with major flooding, due to heavy rains, on September 
01, 2024. The flood waters damaged some of the assets and customer documents. The Company has received 
claim for loss of documents from one of the clients. Pending ascertainment of actual claim, the Company has 
not provided/ disclosed for such claim/ contingent liabilities and corresponding insurance claim receivable in 
the books of accounts as on March 31, 2025.

48	 Approval of financial statements

The Financial Statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on April 22, 2025.

As per our report of even date

For abm & associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105016W/W- 100015   

Anil Chikodi Dimple Hasija Sunder Kataria Dinesh Kumar Garg Parag Gupta
Partner Company Secretary MD & CEO Director Director
Membership No: 107659 DIN: 10702625 DIN: 08925290 DIN: 02130316

Place	: 	Kolhapur Place	: 	Mumbai Jyoti Katira Debashis Gupta
Date : 	April 22, 2025 Date : 	April 22, 2025 CFO Director

DIN: 08741938
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Activities conducted by SDMS during

Vigilance Awareness Week - 2024

gVH$©Vm OmJê$H$Vm gámh - 2024
(From October 28, 2024 to November 3, 2024)

“Culture of Integrity for Nation’s Prosperity”

“ gË`{Zðm H$r g§ñH¥${V go amï— H$r g_¥pÕ ”
Sr. No. Name of the Employee Slogan

Winner 1st Savita Vishwakarma 
(Empl. code 329)

“ H$V©ì`  B©_mZXmar {Zïm h_ g~H$mo AnZmZm h¡,
^maVdf© H$mo AnZo ^«ïmMma _wº$ ~ZmZm h¡ &”

Winner 2nd Manali Kate 
(Empl. code  321)

National Integration Engenders Nationalism

Winner 3rd Prachi Pawaskar  
(Empl. code 317) 

Empowered by Choice, United by Voice : Fight corruption, 
Make a Noise.

(Vigilance Awareness Week)

Integrity Pledge 2024

Rangoli on Vigilance Awareness Week
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Prize Distribution for the competitions held during Vigilance Awareness Week

International Women’s Day
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Experiential Learning Programme 2024 at Z- Bac Adventure & Leisure Resort, 
Kolad - Participants addressed by Trainer

Experiential Learning Programme 2024 at Z- Bac Adventure & Leisure Resort, 
Kolad- Team Building Activities.

SDMS 18th Foundation Day
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Janmashtami 2024

Corporate Etiquette & Grooming Training

Dussehra pooja
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Diwali Celebration

POSH Training
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Christmas Celebration

Swachhata Pakhawada

Fire Safety 
Training 
Programme

Hyderabad

Kolkata (Howrah)
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Photo Gallery

Ahmedabad

Indore

Patiala

Vijayawada
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